

Sussex County Council Public/Media Packet

MEETING: July 30, 2013

DISCLAIMER

This product is provided by Sussex County government as a courtesy to the general public. Items contained within are for background purposes only, and are presented 'as is'. Materials included are subject to additions, deletion or other changes prior to the County Council meeting for which the package is prepared.

Sussex County Council 2 The Circle | PO Box 589 Georgetown, DE 19947 (302) 855-7743



2 THE CIRCLE | PO BOX 589 GEORGETOWN, DE 19947 (302) 855-7743 T (302) 855-7749 F sussexcountyde.gov

Sussex County Council

<u>A G E N D A</u>

JULY 30, 2013

<u>10:00 A.M.</u>

Call to Order

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes

Reading of Correspondence

Todd Lawson, County Administrator

- 1. Discussion and Possible Introduction of a Draft Ordinance entitled "AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 29 OF THE CODE OF SUSSEX COUNTY GOVERNING SUSSEX COUNTY PERSONNEL TO CONFORM TO AND COMPLY WITH FEDERAL LAW, STATE LAW AND CURRENT PERSONNEL PRACTICES"
- 2. Administrator's Report

Gina Jennings, Finance Director

1. Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Hal Godwin, Deputy County Administrator

1. Discussion and Possible Introduction of a Draft Ordinance entitled "AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT CHAPTER 97 IN THE SUSSEX COUNTY CODE WHICH SHALL BE KNOWN AS THE "EXCESSIVE DOG BARKING ORDINANCE OF SUSSEX COUNTY, DELAWARE"

Lawrence Lank, Director of Planning & Zoning

- 1. Request for Time Extension
 - A. Conditional Use No. 1531 filed on behalf of Dean W. Sherman



Grant Requests

- 1. West Rehoboth Community Land Trust for the purchase of a building lot.
- 2. Coverdale Crossroads Community Council for Summer Enrichment/Cultural Program.
- 3. Milton Historical Society for the annual auction fundraiser.

Introduction of Proposed Zoning Ordinances

Any Additional Business Brought Before Council

Executive Session – Pending/Potential Litigation pursuant to 29 Del. C. §10004(b)

Possible Action on Executive Session Items

Sussex County Council meetings can be monitored on the internet at <u>www.sussexcountyde.gov</u>.

In accordance with 29 <u>Del. C.</u> §10004(e)(2), this Agenda was posted on July 23, 2013 at 4:45 p.m., and at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting.

This Agenda was prepared by the County Administrator and is subject to change to include the addition or deletion of items, including Executive Sessions, which arise at the time of the Meeting.

Agenda items listed may be considered out of sequence.

####

SUSSEX COUNTY COUNCIL - GEORGETOWN, DELAWARE, JULY 23, 2013

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Sussex County Council was held on Tuesday, July 23, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., in the Council Chambers, Sussex County Administrative Office Building, Georgetown, Delaware, with the following present:

	Michael H. Vincent	President	
	Samuel R. Wilson, Jr.	Vice President	
	Joan R. Deaver	Councilwoman	
	Vance Phillips	Councilman	
	Todd F. Lawson	County Administrator	
	Gina A. Jennings	Finance Director	
	J. Everett Moore, Jr.	County Attorney	
	Mr. Vincent noted that Mr. (Cole was attending a NACo Conference.	
	The Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance were led by Mr. Vincent.		
Call to Order	Mr. Vincent called the meeting to order.		
M 342 13 Approve Agenda	A Motion was made by Mr. Agenda, as posted.	Wilson, seconded by Mr. Phillip, to approve the	
	Motion Adopted: 4 Yeas,	, 1 Absent.	
	Mr. Ph	eaver, Yea; Mr. Cole, Absent; iillips, Yea; Mr. Wilson, Yea; ncent, Yea	
Minutes	The minutes of July 16, 2013 were approved by consent.		
Corre- spondence	Mr. Moore read the following correspondence:		
	EAGLE SCOUT JACOB MARTIN. RE: Letter in appreciation of a grant for an Eagle Scout project (life rings placed at the Indian River Inlet).		
	Mrs. Deaver read the following correspondence:		
	CHEER, GEORGETOWN, DELAWARE. RE: Letter of invitation to groundbreaking of the new Milton CHEER Activity Center.		
		SERIES SOFTBALL. the opening ceremonies of the 2013 Big League eries Softball Tournament; the ceremonies will	

July 23, 2012 – Page 2

Funding

Budget

(continued) begin on August 4, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. at the Lower Sussex Little League Complex in Roxana, Delaware.

Presentation
by League
of WomenJanet Orlando of the League of Women Voters of Sussex County was in
attendance to present the publication entitled "They Represent You". Ms.
Orlando thanked the Council for its grant that made the publication of this
pamphlet possible.

Adminis-
trator'sMr. Lawson read the following information in his Administrator's Report:Beport1.Delaware Solid Waste Authority Reports

There were 32,996 pounds of recycled material received at the Recycle Delaware pods at the West Complex in Georgetown during the months of April, May, and June 2013. Attached are reports received for each month.

Fiscal [Attachments to the Administrator's Report are not attachments to the minutes.]

Sussex Mrs. Jennings reported that, as per the Delaware Code, the State of County Delaware is responsible for establishing a budget for the allocation of State Reimgrant monies to various senior agencies in the County that provide bursable transportation services. Over the past few years, DART, a division of **Program**/ DelDOT, has maintained the funding for these programs at a total level of Delaware The County's responsibility is to annually approve a \$796,862.00. Transit recommended funding amount for each agency. Corporation

> Mrs. Jennings recommended that the Council consider allocating the budget amounts based on the same level for each agency as in previous years, as follows:

Nanticoke Senior Center	\$ 44,959.30
Indian River Senior Center	2,100.00
Laurel Senior Center	99,082.94
Lewes Senior Center	27,120.41
Cape Henlopen Senior Center	43,065.65
CHEER, Inc.	<u>580,533.70</u>
TOTAL	\$ 796,862.00

M 343 13 Approve Funding	A Motion was made by Mr. Wilson, seconded by Mr. Phillips, that the Sussex County Council approves the allocation of State grant funds to various senior agencies within Sussex County, as presented.	
for Sussex County Reim-	Motion Adopted:	4 Yeas, 1 Absent.
bursable Program	Vote by Roll Call:	Mrs. Deaver, Yea; Mr. Cole, Absent; Mr. Phillips, Yea; Mr. Wilson, Yea; Mr. Vincent, Yea

Long Neck EMS Station 106 Project	John Ashman, Director of Utility Planning, presented Change Order No. 2 to the Long Neck EMS Station No. 106, Contract 12-19. This credit Change Order is for stipulated contingent bid items not required for the project; the result is a credit in the amount of \$2,150.00. A Final Balancing Change Order will be presented at a later date.	
M 344 13 Approve Change Order/ Long Neck EMS Station	the recommendation of the Change Order No. 2 be a County Project No. 12-19, H	Phillips, seconded by Mr. Wilson, based upon Sussex County Engineering Department, that a oproved to balance final quantities for Sussex EMS Station No. 106, which provides a credit of the contract from \$479,790.00 to a final amount
106	Motion Adopted: 4 Yeas	s, 1 Absent.
Project	Mr. P	Deaver, Yea; Mr. Cole, Absent; hillips, Yea; Mr. Wilson, Yea; incent, Yea
Grant Requests	Mrs. Jennings presented grant requests for the Council's consideration.	
Request Deferred	Action was deferred on the grant request submitted by the West Rehoboth Community Land Trust.	
M 345 13 Council- manic Grant	A Motion was made by Mrs. Deaver, seconded by Mr. Phillips, to give \$700.00 (\$350.00 each from Mrs. Deaver's and Mr. Phillips' Councilmanic Grant Accounts) to the Cool Spring Civic Association for the community outreach event.	
	Motion Adopted: 4 Yeas	s, 1 Absent.
	Mr. P	Deaver, Yea; Mr. Cole, Absent; hillips, Yea; Mr. Wilson, Yea; incent, Yea
M 346 13 Council- manic Grant	A Motion was made by Mr. Phillips, seconded by Mr. Wilson, to give \$1,000.00 from Mr. Phillips' Councilmanic Grant Account to the Friends of the Prince George's Chapel for maintenance and insurance costs.	
Grant	Motion Adopted: 4 Yeas	s, 1 Absent.
	Mr. P	Deaver, Yea; Mr. Cole, Absent; hillips, Yea; Mr. Wilson, Yea; incent, Yea
Additional Business	Under Additional Business, to preachers/clergy.	Dan Kramer commented on grants being given

Additional Under Additional Business, Patricia Fish of Georgetown referenced a letter that she received from the Planning and Zoning Department instructing her **Business** (continued) to remove her fence by a date specific and stating that if she failed to do so, the Constable would take legal action. She expressed her concern regarding this threatened action and stated that she has a certified survey that shows that her fence is located on her property; that her well, shed and fence are located close together and will be affected by the Planning and Zoning Department's demands; that the County should not pronounce her guilty without talking to her and allowing her to defend herself; that the adjacent property owners who are contesting the fence placement also have a survey that they obtained, which differs from her survey; and that the County should have a policy to deal with property disputes outlining steps a property owner can take when legal action is threatened by the County.

> Councilman Phillips stated that the County needs to review its policy in respect to this matter and he asked that the matter be placed on an agenda in the near future.

> Mr. Moore stated that a survey shows an encroachment of her fence and that this is what prompted the County Inspector to visit the property. Subsequent to that, it was determined that there were other surveys found including the one Mrs. Fish referenced. Mr. Moore stated that this is clearly a boundary line dispute and as such, the County is not taking any action.

> Mr. Moore stated that, in regards to the procedures that occur, the County would not send personnel out to take down a fence as the County does not have the authority to do it at that stage. He noted that the procedure would have been: (1) the County would have issued a violation, (2) the matter would have gone to JP Court, (3) the property owner would have the right to contest the matter in Court, (4) as a result of the contesting, the Court would make a ruling; and (5) if the property owner disagrees with the ruling, there would be an appeal of that.

Wolfgang von Baumgart of Millsboro, State Chairman of the Independent Party of Delaware, spoke in support of Mrs. Pat Fish and stated that the Party reiterates its support for property owners to own and retain their land free of undue encumbrances. He stated that this is a civil rights case and it "is a violation of the basic tenants and founding principles of our great nation". Mr. von Baumgart stated that he calls for a detailed and open public investigation of any possible abuses of Planning and Zoning and that the Planning and Zoning letter, in its threatening form should not have gone out.

Don Ayotte of Georgetown spoke in support of Pat Fish and he expressed concern about the Planning and Zoning Office taking a developers' or other property owners' side without checking on the facts first and sending a threatening letter. Mr. Ayotte stated that if land is taken away from Mrs. Fish, it would compromise her sewer system and her well. (continued) Barb Gerk of Bethany Beach thanked the Council, County Administrator, and legal team for their efforts and assistance on a cell tower issue.

Public A Public Hearing was held to consider a property owners request for annexation of an area of land into the Bethany Beach Sanitary Sewer Hearing/ Windansea District (Windansea Area Expansion - Ocean View Beach Club Annexation). The area is located on the north side of Muddy Neck Road Area and is proposed for the development of 94 townhouses, 56 condos and 3,000 **Expansion**/ square feet of retail space; the development will be known as the Ocean Ocean View Beach Club. Ocean Way Estates is to the north and west of the area. View The area includes all of Parcel 11 and a small area of adjoining Parcel 12 Beach and adjoins the existing sewer district. Club Annexation/

BBSSD Rob Davis, Senior Planner, Utility Planning Division, advised that no written comments have been received.

There were no public comments and the Public Hearing was closed.

M 347 13 A Motion was made by Mrs. Deaver, seconded by Mr. Phillips, to Adopt Resolution No. R 011 13 entitled "A RESOLUTION TO EXTEND THE BOUNDARY OF THE BETHANY BEACH SANITARY SEWER DISTRICT (BBSSD) TO INCLUDE AN AREA OF LAND SITUATED ALONG THE NORTH SIDE OF MUDDY NECK ROAD, SOUTHWEST OF THE TOWN OF BETHANY BEACH, BEING IN BALTIMORE HUNDRED, SUSSEX COUNTY, DELAWARE".

Motion Adopted:	4 Yeas, 1 Absent.
Vote by Roll Call:	Mrs. Deaver, Yea; Mr. Cole, Absent; Mr. Philling, Yea: Mr. Wilson, Yea:
	Mr. Phillips, Yea; Mr. Wilson, Yea; Mr. Vincent, Yea

M 348 13 Recess At 10:42 a.m., a Motion was made by Mr. Wilson, seconded by Mr. Phillips, to recess until 12:30 p.m. as the Council would be attending the Grand Opening of the Long Neck EMS Station #106 on Indian Mission Road in Millsboro.

Grand

OpeningThe Council reconvened at 12:30 p.m. at the Long Neck EMS Station #106Ceremonyon Indian Mission Road in Millsboro for the Grand Opening Ceremony.

M 349 13A Motion was made by Mr. Wilson, seconded by Mr. Phillips, to adjourn at
1:36 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Robin A. Griffith Clerk of the Council

TODD F. LAWSON COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

(302) 855-7742 T (302) 855-7749 F tlawson@sussexcountyde.gov





Memorandum

TO:	Sussex County Council		
	The Honorable Michael H. Vincent, President		
	The Honorable Samuel R. Wilson, Jr., Vice President		
	The Honorable George B. Cole		
	The Honorable Joan R. Deaver		
	The Honorable Vance Phillips		
FROM:	Todd F. Lawson		
	County Administrator		
RE:	Personnel Ordinance		
DATE:	July 12, 2013		

During Tuesday's Council meeting, I am scheduled to discuss and possibly have introduced an Ordinance relating to Chapter 29 of the County Code, the Personnel Code.

As you are aware, since the original adoption of Chapter 29, the Personnel Code has received very little updates and amendments.

Several months ago, County personnel and legal staff began to review and amend the Personnel Code with the goal of updating the language to reflect current County standards and procedures as well as bring the Code in line with State and Federal laws, like the Family Medical Leave Act.

Once a working draft was developed, we circulated the document among all County employees to seek their review and feedback. In addition, we hosted two employee workshops to provide employees the opportunity to ask questions and comment on the document. A copy of the employee comments with responses is attached.

Finally, as required by law, the County Personnel Board held a public meeting on June 20, 2013 and was provided a legal review of the draft changes to the Personnel Code by our attorney, Barry Willoughby. At the conclusion of the meeting, the Board voted 3-0 to recommend the amended Personnel Code to the County Administrator, per Code. A copy of the meeting minutes is attached.

The final working draft of the amended Personnel Code is attached. Should the Ordinance be introduced on Tuesday, a public hearing will be held to discuss the specifics of the legislation. If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me.

TFL/kac

Attachments

pc: Ms. Gina A. Jennings Mr. Barry Willoughby Ms. Karen Brewington Mr. Everett Moore



COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 2 THE CIRCLE | PO BOX 589 GEORGETOWN, DELAWARE 19947

June 6, 2013

Comments Regarding Personnel Ordinance for Employee Workshops

Employee Question:

Bereavement Section - "It seems they have moved the grandparent bereavement from the parent status of days off and put it with the aunt and uncle etc. I just wanted to mention that there are a lot of people who are much closer to their grandparents than their parents due to different circumstances. Maybe the clause about grandparents should be moved back to the parent status or stated that it may fall under the parent status on a one on one basis."

Section 29-23...A does this include dispatchers for 5 days? I believe before it was 4 days since that is what a tour is for them.

Response: *"In Loco Parentis"* addresses this issue if someone was raised by another family member (Grandparent, Aunt, Uncle, etc.).

The Bereavement Policy itself will address specific situations where the "tour" is considered a max of four days.

Employee Question:

Unclassified Positions - My comment pertains to 29.3.b.2: What is the purpose of inserting the language "serve at the pleasure of the county government" for unclassified employees? Does that mean that Department heads can now be terminated without performance considerations?

Response: This list was updated to include current positions as well as those positions that require high level decision making skills. Prior to this updated list, it included all directors.

Employee Question:

<u>**Communication**</u> - "Some employees did not receive a copy of the Draft Ordinance. My suggestion to remedy this would be to: have HR send it out to all "exchange users" on the County system; supply a printed copy for distribution to Departments with employees who do **not** utilize computers in their daily tasks; and then extend the deadline for the opportunity to offer comments. This same "exchange user" and printed copy procedure should be used for amendments made to the Ordinance, and also in creating the forthcoming HR policy manual."

"Use of a working group was a wonderful idea. I further offer the idea of incorporating a group comparable to the "employees benefit committee", or even utilize the existing

benefit committee, to include a representative from each County Department. This group could brainstorm and make suggestions on all County Personnel/HR issues, including the proposed healthcare insurance modifications discussed at Council last Tuesday. This is definitely an issue that will affect several of us."

Response: We forwarded the e-mail to all exchange users that was originally sent to supervisors & managers on 4/23/13. Both e-mails asked that the information be shared with those employees who do not have access to e-mail.

We were advised by employment counsel that working groups would be viewed as "quasi – unions" and it is not recommended that we proceed in that direction. This was originally discussed in our work group as a possibility and we decided to take out of the personnel ordinance. We will move forward on employee workshops to create transparency.

Employee Question:

<u>Overtime policies (Section 29-35)</u> – "It appears to me that much of the new language, and proposed changes in compensation, have been written in order to limit employees from working arbitrary or discretionary overtime."

Sewer plant operators are in a position where all overtime they work is mandatory. Their overtime work is vital and completely necessary for the daily running of the plants. I don't think the ordinance revisions take into account the important & mandatory work at these plants that needs to occur each and every day of the year, which by definition is work that is "previously scheduled."

The question also occurred to me as I was writing my comments: if this is a draft of a proposed update, and has not been voted on, why are these policies, that are currently only in draft form and have not been officially approved, being currently enforced?

I believe the section which outlines changes in overtime compensation focuses on office or clerical workers and disregards, or completely ignores, the realities of sewer plant workers.

Response: Overtime in the ordinance needs to address all employees in every department. Whether it is mandatory or discretionary overtime is approved by the department head since they are responsible for their budget. In turn, the County Administrator and Council approve the budget with the amount of overtime that is submitted by the Department Head.

Employee Question:

A. [Compensation for overtime work shall be paid only when the department head of the department concerned or his authorized representative has given prior approval for overtime work.] <u>The employee's department head must approve all overtime prior to the employee working overtime. Failure to obtain such approval is considered a violation of policy and shall subject the employee to discipline.</u>

"In my mind, the underlined language in Part A is extreme and completely misses the mark of all overtime performed by SCRWF operators. No operator at South Coastal arbitrarily decides to work overtime. All overtime performed by operators is mandatory, not discretionary. I strongly feel that A. the first sub-section of 29-35 should define and differentiate overtime based on <u>mandatory overtime</u> (100% of all overtime performed at the plant) and <u>non-mandatory overtime</u>. I also feel strongly that, once defined and differentiated, <u>mandatory overtime</u>, all of which is <u>performed on the weekends or outside of regular working hours (8a-4p) should be classified exactly the same as emergency call-in overtime, because the time an employee has to work on weekends and outside of regular working hours is inherently more valuable than hours worked from 8a-4p."</u>

Response: Emergency call in is defined as the employee having to make a round trip from home to work. It was not previously scheduled. Please see HR's On Call/Emergency Call Back Pay Policy.

B. Hourly employees shall receive compensation equal to 1 1/2 times their normal rate of pay for hours worked in excess of the normal five-day workweek. Time and a half shall be paid for work performed on Saturday or Sunday when 35 regular hours have been worked during the regular workweek. [Where fewer than 35 hours have been worked due to excused absence, then time and a half may be permitted for Saturday and Sunday work.]

"As already stated, mandatory overtime, all of which is performed on the weekends or outside of regular working hours (8a-4p) should be classified exactly the same as emergency call-in overtime. The pay for mandatory work performed on the weekends or outside of regular working hours (8a-4p) should be compensated at 1.5 times the normal rate of pay regardless of any time off the employee has had to take during the work week the overtime is performed. The draft revision (*which by the way is currently being enforced even though from what I understand this is only a draft and NOT current official policy*) will force (is forcing) operators **to work 12 days in a row in order to receive proper compensation for mandatory overtime on the weekends.**"

Response: Time that is scheduled is not considered emergency call in. Details are included in the Overtime policy and On Call/Emergency Call Back Pay Policy.

Employee Question:

Why is this sentence [Where fewer than 35 hours have been worked due to excused absence, then time and a half may be permitted for Saturday and Sunday work.] being deleted?

Response: It is not and has not been our current practice. Therefore, we have removed from ordinance.

Employee Question:

[C. Salaried employees in the classified service shall receive overtime compensation at a rate of 1 1/2 times the normal rate for hours worked in excess of 35 hours of work per week. Time and a half shall be paid for work performed on Saturday and Sunday when 35 hours have already been worked during the immediately preceding five working days. The regular workday for salaried employees other than those specific exceptions contained herein shall consist of seven hours, and the regular workweek shall consist of 35 hours, Monday through Friday inclusive. The starting time for these employees will generally be 8:30 a.m. and the quitting time about 4:30 p.m., with one hour for lunch.]

"As I am not a salaried employee, I have less at stake in this paragraph, but I see major impacts in such situations as plant upsets and crises. So, if we have a major problem at the plant, like a storm, bypass or other major event, does this mean that a salaried employee would not be compensated for his or her time if they came in to assist?"

CURRENTLY IF AN EMPLOYEE IS OFF DURING THE WEEK DUE TO A COUNTY HOLIDAY AND HAVE TO WORK OVERTIME DURING THAT WEEK, THEY ARE ONLY PAID STRAIGHT TIME UNTIL THE 35 HOURS IS MET. THE EMPLOYEE IS BEING PENALIZED FOR NOT WORKING 35 HOURS, BUT WAS FORCED TO TAKE OFF DUE TO A MANDATED COUNTY HOLIDAY. THE OVERTIME WORK in this situation SHOULD BE 1 ½ TIMES THEIR NORMAL RATE OF PAY.

CURRENTLY IF AN EMPLOYEE IS OFF DURING THE WEEK DUE TO AN EXCUSED ABSENCE AND HAS TO WORK ON A WEEKEND, THEY ARE ONLY PAID STRAIGHT TIME UNTIL THE 35 HOURS IS MET. IF THE EMPLOYEE HAS AN EXCUSED ABSENCE, THE OVERTIME WORK SHOULD BE 1 ½ TIMES THEIR NORMAL RATE OF PAY. COUNTY HOLIDAYS AND EXCUSED ABSENCES (SUCH AS PREAPPROVED VACATION AND SICK TIME WITH A DOCTOR'S NOTE) SHOULD BE COUNTED AS TIME WORKED FOR THE PURPOSES OF COMPUTING OVERTIME.

Response: See overtime policy.

Employee Question:

D. If, in the course of his regular service, an employee in the classified service is required to work on a day observed as a legal holiday, he shall be given an additional day off, or, if such additional day off cannot be given because of the work situation as determined by the employee's department head, he shall be paid additionally at straight time for each hour worked on the day observed as a holiday, even though such time worked may be part of his regular service. If an employee is required to work on a day observed as a holiday which is not in the course of his regular service, he shall be compensated additionally in accordance with the rules on compensation in emergency overtime service. Work on holidays shall require the prior approval of the Administrator.

WHAT ARE THE RULES ON COMPENSATION IN EMERGENCY OVERTIME SERVICE?

SCRWF operators do not understand the sentence highlighted in green. Work on holidays is mandated for us. Not one SCRWF operator would ask to work on a holiday if the work was not needed. Plus, does this mean that the County Administrator is going to be advised on every single holiday who is the operator on call and what their hours are at each different plant and be required to issue an official approval? If so, this needs to be stated as such, and will apply to each legal holiday throughout the year.

After considering this draft and thinking about what I have written so far, it seems to me that most of the language in the draft is aimed at office-type workers. Sewer plant workers are in a completely different situation from office workers, and I believe language needs to be added to account for this.

Here at SCRWF, we have a situation that is very specific to our plant. There is a process called the RDP that must be run in order for the whole plant to work properly.

Running the RDP on an overtime basis is only done to maintain plant capacity and treatment. When the lagoons get so full that we cannot waste (a term that means to get rid of excess sludge) the appropriate amount for the plant process, running the RDP overtime is like an emergency situation. No SCRWF operator ever goes to the Department Head and asks to work overtime in the RDP. The Department Head goes to the employee and informs them that overtime must be worked.

As such, all overtime that the Department Head asks SCRWF operators to perform in the RDP process should be treated as emergency overtime and should be compensated at time and a half, regardless of any time off the employee has taken that week.

Response: See Overtime Policy

Employee Question:

SECTION 29-35 COMPENSATION FOR OVERTIME AND HOLIDAY PAY

§ 29-35. Compensation for overtime and holiday work.

A. [Compensation for overtime work shall be paid only when the department head of the department concerned or his authorized representative has given prior approval for overtime work.] The employee's department head must approve all overtime prior to the employee working overtime. Failure to obtain such approval is considered a violation of policy and shall subject the employee to

The wording should reflect scheduled overtime must be preapproved. Emergency overtime is worked by the employees on call and each call is not preapproved by the District Managers.

Response: All overtime must be approved. This is done through department heads or their designees.

Employee Question:

Miscellaneous Items-

I mentioned a couple of times about the use of "department head." In some cases I think it would be helpful to add "his or her designee" since the department head may not actually be directly involved with the question or task.

Response: Good idea, we will make the change

Employee Question:

Vacation selection I can operate with the guidelines that are given but my concern is that different departments or divisions will operate in different ways.

Response: Attendance policy should not be in ordinance; it should be an HR policy. We will look into this.

Employee Question:

Since there are divisions within the County's 35 hour group that require Sat & Sun coverage why are we specifying the work week as Mon through Fri?

Response: Workweek is Sunday - Saturday

Employee Question:

- 1. §29-1 F-H.
 - a. Given the recent fair housing settlement, we thought it might be prudent to also insert a section regarding the process for a civil rights discrimination complaint. In the case of sexual harassment and civil rights discrimination, it would apply for employee-employee or employeeconsumer. Our office needs to know how to direct complaints of alleged discrimination.
- 2. §29-3 B. Unclassified Service (p. 4)
 - a. It appears that all County departments are represented, with the exception of Community Development & Housing. Should we be noted there as well?
- 3. §29-6. Contracts with outside persons or firms.
 - a. It was noted that this section was removed because it does not apply to this particularly Ordinance. Is it now located in another location?
- 4. §29-25. Vacation Leave.
 - a. This section was amended to state that an employee must voluntarily leave and be in good standing to receive vacation payout at the time they terminate employment.
 - i. Our comment is one of concern for this amendment. With the exception of termination based on a related abuse (i.e. overtime, vacation/sick time), employees should have a right to access the payout, as it was earned over the course of employment.
- 5. We did not note a section regarding retirement and related courses of action (i.e. accumulated sick/vacation time, pension information)

Response:

- 1. This is addressed in the harassment policy.
- Council made the decision which positions were considered "classified" based on decision making in their positions.
- 3. This applies to Finance and information is in their department procedures.
- Current practice did not change. If an employee is not in favorable standing, he/she would not receive the payout.
- 5. Pension is in Chapter 26 and is not addressed in Personnel Ordinance.

Employee Question:

- Page 12, Section 29-15, Paragraph D
 - "When the Administrator decides to impose a suspension of three or more days without pay or dismissal, the Administrator..." It may read better to say "to impose a suspension of three or more days without pay or <u>to</u> <u>impose</u> dismissal,"
- Page 17, Section 29-23, Paragraph B
 - Under the definition of a "near relative', remove the word "first" which did not get deleted with "cousin".
- Page 23, Section 29-29, Paragraph A
 - The 90- day period is more generous that that required by USERRA, if it is meant to apply to all lengths of active duty service. USERRA requires the 90 days only if the service is for 180 or more days. Shorter periods of active duty impose shorter time periods for returning to employment. If you want to be more generous than the law requires, OK; but it is not required.

Response: Page 12: The group did not see a reason to change. Page 17: This was changed in the ordinance. Page 23: Leave as is.

Employee Question:

- Most easily noticeable about the document, it is written in a gender specific (masculine) format. This should be changed to a gender neutral format. In 2013, County Policy should not be reinforcing unfair stereotypes.
- 1) 29-29 C States that 10 days advance notice MUST be given. It would seem more appropriate to state "as soon as practicable" notice should be given.
- a) A scenario may arise where 10 days' notice is not given to the service member before orders to report are executed.

- b) Those orders issued with short notice would be no less binding to the service member.
- c) Keep in mind this is a two way street. A service member may know well ahead of time, of an impending active duty. But by this policy, only 10 days' notice is required.
- 2) What is meant by "..... or benefits beyond this ten-day period." as written in 29-29 C?
- a. The above line, I question what happens to my health insurance after these 10 days of military leave are used.
- 3) 29-29 C uses the term "military training or special duty". 29-29 E uses the term "emergency duty".
- a. From reading this and my own experience; there are 2 distinct forms of active duty as the county is concerned:
- i. The first is the active duty for training that is sometimes required.
- ii. The other is the Presidential Executive Order type. Usually referred to as Title X or Title XIV.
- b. 29-29 D states "no loss of seniority, accumulated sick leave, or any of the other benefits provided county employees".
- i. It specifically attaches this to the qualifier "military training or special duty". It does not say that the case is the same if a service member is recalled in an emergency situation.
- ii. The statement in 29-29 D seems to specifically exclude the Title X or Title XIV type emergency duty.

Response:

Gender has been addressed in the ordinance.

We are fine with adding "or as soon as practicable" as it reads in FMLA. We have added "active duty".

Ten days in a calendar year are paid for military leave. All benefit payments including health insurance, FSA, optional life insurance are the responsibility of the employee while on military duty. Prior to an employee going out on military duty, the HR Representative discusses payment options. Since paychecks are not generated, there is no way to withhold a deduction. Arrangements are made for the payments prior to the employee departing. Sussex County Council, Georgetown, Delaware - Personnel Board Public Hearing

June 20, 2013

A scheduled Public Hearing of the Sussex County Personnel Board was held on Thursday, June 20, 2013 at 9:00 a.m. in the Council Chambers, Sussex County Administrative Office Building, Georgetown, Delaware with the following present:

Mr. Everett Moore, County Attorney

Mr. David Kenton, Chairman, Personnel Board

Dr. Michael Owens, Personnel Board

Mr. Clay Yocum, Personnel Board

Call to

Order Mr. Moore called the meeting to order.

The agenda was approved by consent.

Mr. Moore opened the floor up for nominations for a Chairman for the Personnel Board.

A motion was made by Dr. Owens, seconded by Mr. Yocum, to nominate Mr. Kenton to serve as Chairman of the Sussex County Personnel Board for the Year 2013.

It was a unanimous vote and Mr. Kenton will remain the Chairman for the Year 2013.

Mr. Moore started the Public Hearing regarding the proposed ordinance to amend Chapter 29. Personnel. Mr. Moore explained the Public Hearing process and the sequence of events that will have to occur for the proposed ordinance to be adopted.

Mr. Barry Willoughby, Labor Attorney, presented an overview of why Chapter 29. Personnel Ordinance is being updated. Mr. Willoughby then focused on the major points of the proposed changes:

- 1) Incorporate all categories into the Personnel Ordinance, i.e., race, gender, religion etc.
- 2) Bring current the verbiage on Due Process
- 3) Clarify which position(s) fall within a certain classification. Identified categories of employee types and to remove reference to positions that are no longer in existence. Specify which positions fall within state code and include the verbiage from the code "serve at the pleasure of the County Council"
- 4) Clarify how overtime is paid to be consistent across the County
- 5) Define an employee in good standing at the time of termination whether voluntary or involuntary

Mr. Moore asked the Personnel Board if they had any questions. No questions were posed from the Personnel Board.

Mr. Moore indicated some of the changes he observed. He noted the proposed document is gender neutral and it does include the types within the protected class. Mr. Moore also made note of the overtime rules. Mr. Willoughby stated that overtime pay rules will be outlined in a policy. Mr. Willoughby noted the proposed ordinance does state that policies and procedures can be put in place as long as they do not conflict with the ordinance.

Mr. Moore opened floor up to Public.

Mr. Dan Kramer came forward with a list of questions/comments:

- 1) Did the Personnel Board read the document? All the way through? Each member of the Personnel Board indicated they did.
- 2) Mr. Kramer made the statement "why does it need to be changed, this is a waste of time"?
- 3) Mr. Kramer stating his displeasure about the termination process and the potential for employee's to lose their vacation and sick payout.
- 4) Mr. Kramer disagrees that it be mandatory for employees to have to use paid leave when on FMLA.
- 5) Mr. Kramer stated he liked that the Personnel Board has control of the Human Resources Department.

Mr. Willoughby addressed Mr. Kramer's questions/comments. He stated that the termination process that was changed was for unclassified positions and that the intent is not for arbitrary dismissal and reiterated this is in state code. Regarding FMLA, it is the employer's discretion whether FMLA runs concurrent with paid leave. Every employer he represents administers their FMLA to run concurrent so the employee's salary continues and leave time does not build up. Mr. Willoughby's recommendation is run FMLA concurrent. Mr. Willoughby also addressed Mr. Kramer's comment regarding the criteria for an employee to be in good standing at the time they exit the County.

Mr. Moore asked for any additional public comments. There were no more comments.

Mr. Moore stated as there are no more questions/comments the Public Hearing is closed.

Mr. Kenton asked for a recommendation to send the proposed ordinance to the County Administrator.

Dr. Owens recommended sending to the proposed ordinance to the County Administrator and added his feedback. He compliments the County Administrator and the staff for updating the code and also for including employee focus groups for input. He felt it was a very positive thing.

Mr. Yocum also recommended sending the proposed document to the County Administrator and noted he was impressed with the comments from the employees and felt they had very good questions. He stated he feels this is the right step in the right direction in becoming uniform with both State and Federal codes that will always protect the employee. Mr. Kenton concurred with all the comments and felt it was very detailed. Mr. Kenton asked for a motion to send the proposed ordinance to the County Administrator. Dr. Owens moved to recommend the County Administrator move forward and present the Council with the proposed ordinance. Mr. Yocum seconded, motion carried.

Mr. Kenton asked for a motion to adjourn the Public Hearing meeting. Dr. Owens made a motion and Mr. Yocum seconded.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:26 a.m.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 29 OF THE CODE OF SUSSEX COUNTY GOVERNING SUSSEX COUNTY PERSONNEL TO CONFORM TO AND COMPLY WITH FEDERAL LAW, STATE LAW AND CURRENT PERSONNEL PRACTICES.

WHEREAS, Chapter 29 of the Sussex County Code governs personnel practices for all Sussex County employees; and

WHEREAS, Sussex County desires to update Chapter 29 in its entirety to conform to and comply with Federal and State law and current personnel practices as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. The Code of Sussex County, Chapter 29, is hereby restated in its entirety and is hereby amended by deleting the language in brackets and inserting the underlined language as follows:

CHAPTER 29. PERSONNEL

ARTICLE I. General Policy and Procedures

§ 29-1. Statutory authority; title.

§ 29-2. Policy statement.

§ 29-3. Service divisions.

§ 29-4. Administrative official.

§ 29-5. Personnel Board.

[§ 29-6. Contracts with outside persons or firms.] Reserved.

§ 29-7. Preparation of pay and personnel rules.

§ 29-8. Job classification plan.

§ 29-9. Preparation of pay plan.

§ 29-10. Appointments, promotions and veteran's preference.

§ 29-11. [Eligible lists] <u>Selection, Resignation, & Recall</u>.

§ 29-12. Probation.

§ 29-13. Rules governing hours of work and leaves of absence.

§ 29-14. Training.

§ 29-15. Conditions [on tenure of service] <u>for Continued</u> <u>Employment;</u> [d] <u>D</u>isciplinary [a]<u>A</u>ction<u>; Resignations; Demotions</u>.

§ 29-16. Records.

§ 29-17. Investigations and hearings.

§ 29-18. General prohibitions.

ARTICLE II. Attendance and Leave Policy

§ 29-19. Scope.

§ 29-20. Standard workweek; exceptions.

§ 29-21. Part-time employment.

§ 29-22. Holidays.

§ 29-23. [Leave for death in immediate family] Bereavement.

§ 29-24. Sick leave.

§ 29-25. Vacation leave.

§ 29-26. [Leave for death of near relative.] Reserved.

§ 29-27. Computation of vacation time.

§ 29-28. Medical leave.

§ 29-29. Military leave.

§ 29-30. Special leaves of absence.

§ 29-31. Leaves of absence without pay.

§ 29-31A. Short-term and long-term disability benefits.

ARTICLE III. Pay Plan Rules

§ 29-32. Preparation, submission and revision.

§ 29-33. Standard workweek

§ 29-34. Compensation for part-time work.

§ 29-35. Compensation for overtime and holiday work.

§ 29-36. Rate of pay for new employees.

§ 29-37. Transfers.

§ 29-38. Promotions.

§ 29-39. Demotions.

§ 29-40. Annual salary review.

[HISTORY: Adopted by the County Council of Sussex County 1-25-1972 by Ord. No. 6. Amendments noted where applicable.]

GENERAL REFERENCES Pensions — See Ch. 26. Salaries and compensation — See Ch. 35.

ARTICLE I. General Policy and Procedures

§ 29-1. Statutory authority; title.

This chapter is adopted pursuant to and in compliance with 9 Del. C. § 7006(b). It shall be known as the "Personnel Ordinance."

§ 29-2. Policy statement.

It is hereby the declared personnel policy of Sussex County that:

- A. Employment in the county government shall be based on merit and fitness, free of personal and political considerations.
- B. Just and equitable compensation and conditions of employment shall be established and maintained to promote efficiency and economy in the operation of the county government.
- C. Positions having similar duties and responsibilities shall be classified and compensated on a uniform basis.
- D. Appointments, promotions and other actions requiring the application of the merit principle shall be based on systematic tests and evaluations.
- E. [Tenure of employees covered by this chapter] <u>Continued employment of</u> <u>classified employees as defined in this chapter</u> shall be subject to good behavior, the satisfactory performance of work, <u>compliance with work</u> <u>rules and standards of conduct</u>, necessity for the performance of work and the availability of funds.
- F. Employment in the county government shall be free from discrimination, harassment, or retaliation based on race, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age (40 and above), disability, genetic information, marital status, political affiliation or any other characteristic or activity protected by state or federal law. Equal employment opportunities shall be provided in all aspects of county government employment including but not limited to recruiting, hiring, promotion, discipline, layoffs or termination from employment, compensation, benefits, educational assistance, and training.

§ 29-3. Service divisions.

Employment in the Sussex County government shall be divided into three services: classified, unclassified and excluded.

A. Excluded service.

- (1) The excluded service shall include the following:
 - (a) All elected officials.
 - (b) Members of appointed boards, commissions and advisory committees.

- (c) The Civil Defense Director and members of the Civil Defense Agency covered under the State of Delaware personnel system.
- (d) [Employees] <u>Persons</u> hired by the county government to perform services on a fee or fixed-cost basis, <u>including but not limited to [to</u> include] consultants [,] <u>and</u> the County Attorney.[, court reporters and the liaison to OEDP.]
- (e) Employees hired under the Emergency Employment Act of 1971 and other similar programs of this nature subsidized by the federal government.
- (2) Employees placed in the excluded service shall not be included in the provisions of the personnel system, except that the county government shall keep appropriate personnel records on the persons in this service.
- B. Unclassified service.
 - (1) The unclassified service shall include the following:

[Amended 3-6-1973 by Ord. No. 12; 6-3-1975 by Ord. No. 18; 8-26-1975 by Ord. No. 21; 7-31-1990 by Ord. No. 706]

- (a) The County Administrator.
- (b) The Director of Finance.
- (c) The County Engineer.
- (d) [The County Planner.] The Deputy Administrator.
- (e) The [Director] Department Head of Planning and Zoning.
- (f) [The Finance and Property Specialist.] <u>The Department Head of</u> <u>Assessment.</u>
- (g) [Deputies and] Chief Deputies <u>of Recorder of Deeds, Marriage</u> <u>Bureau, Register of Wills and Sheriff.</u>
- (h) The Clerk of the County Council.
- (i) [The secretary-administrative.] <u>The Department Head of Emergency</u> <u>Operations.</u>
- (j) [The Personnel, Manpower and Safety Director.] <u>The Department</u> <u>Head of Human Resources.</u>

- (k) [The Industrial Developer.] <u>The Department Head of Economic</u> <u>Development.</u>
- (I) The County Librarian.
- (m) [The Civil Engineers.] <u>The Department Head of Emergency Medical</u> <u>Services.</u>
- [(n) The Chief Construction Inspector.]
- [(o) The Landfill Supervisor.]
- (2) Subject to the provisions set in 9 Del. C. § 7006, [E]employees in the unclassified service shall serve at the pleasure of the county government and be exempt from provisions requiring competitive examinations and other merit system procedures as specifically stated in the employee rules and shall not be subject to the position classification plan and pay plan developed as part of the personnel system; but employment in these positions shall be subject to [placed under] the Sussex County personnel [rules] ordinance and employees holding these positions shall also be eligible for such employee benefits as are in effect during the time of their employment.
- (3) The Chief Deputy or, if there is no chief deputy, the deputy employed by each elected officer of the County, shall be possessed of all of the authority of their respective offices, and in the absence, disability or death of the duly elected officer, the chief deputy, or if there is no chief deputy, the deputy employed by the elected officer, shall perform the duties of the office until any vacancy created by the absence, disability or death of the elected officer shall be filled as required by the Constitution or statutes of the State of Delaware.

[Added 4-6-2004 by Ord. No. 1676]

- C. Classified service.
 - (1) The classified service shall include all county employees not included under Subsections A and B.
 - (2) Employees in the classified service are subject to all provisions of the <u>county</u> personnel [system] <u>policies as set forth in the Personnel</u> <u>Ordinance and elsewhere.[</u>, such that] [t]<u>Their [employment,] hiring</u> <u>and promotion[</u>, demotion and removal] shall be on the basis of open, advertised competitive procedures [and according to the procedures] <u>as set forth in this chapter; their position will be in accordance with the</u> approved classification plan; <u>and</u> their remuneration will be as established by the Council-approved pay plan as the basis for wage

and salary decisions[; and they will be governed by all employee rules and regulations approved by the County Council].

- D. Upon the effective date of this chapter, any employee of the county holding a position in the classified service shall have permanent status if he or she has held the present position for at least six months immediately preceding the effective date of this chapter or shall complete a probationary period of six months before acquiring permanent status if the position has been held for a period of less than six months immediately preceding the effective date of this chapter. Employment immediately preceding the effective date of this chapter shall be included as part of the probationary period. Employees who have not completed six months of service immediately preceding the effective date of the effective date of this chapter shall be subject to an extension of their probationary period as provided in §29-12.
- E. The class in which each employee shall have status shall be determined in the manner provided in § 29-8.
- F. The following sections of this chapter apply only to the classified service unless otherwise specifically provided.
- § 29-4. Administrative official.
- A. The personnel [system] <u>ordinance</u> established by this chapter shall be administered by the County Administrator as provided in 9 Del. C. § 7006. The County Administrator shall take such actions as necessary to ensure that all appointments, promotions, demotions and reductions in force concerning employees in the classified service are made solely on the basis of merit principles and in accordance with the provisions of § 29-15 of this chapter. The County Council may reserve approval/disapproval authority over personnel actions at its discretion.
- B. The County Administrator shall perform those specific duties assigned him <u>or her</u> in 9 Del. C. § 7006 and any additional duties which may be required and are authorized by this chapter or the County Council.
- § 29-5. Personnel Board.
- A. A Personnel Board shall be created in accordance with 9 Del. C. § 7006. The Board shall:
 - (1) Advise the County Administrator <u>and Director of Human Resources</u> on matters of personnel policy and problems of personnel administration, including the development of personnel rules, a job classification plan and a uniform pay plan.

- (2) Represent the public interest in the improvement of personnel administration in the county.
- (3) Make any inquiry which it may consider desirable concerning personnel administration in the county government and make recommendations to the County Administrator and/or Council with respect thereto. In this regard, the Board, each member of the Board and the Administrator shall have the power to administer oaths, subpoena witnesses and compel the production of papers and records pertinent to any investigation authorized by this chapter.
- (4) Hear appeals presented by county employees or their representatives and may render advisory opinions, based on its findings, to the County Administrator with a copy to the employee concerned. <u>The</u> <u>County Attorney or his or her designee shall represent the Personnel</u> <u>Board at appeals presented by County employees. The Personnel</u> <u>Board shall adopt and follow hearing procedures that are consistent</u> <u>with this ordinance and due process requirements of state and federal</u> <u>law.</u>
- (5) Review, hold hearings and make recommendations to the Administrator on the personnel rules and other matters at the discretion of the Administrator or Council.
- B. The members of the Board shall be compensated, for each hearing which they attend, in the amount of \$150 per member per hearing. The Board shall not receive compensation for more than 10 hearings in any year without the prior approval of the County Council.

[Amended 3-21-1995 by Ord. No. 1015]

- C. One of the members of the Board shall be elected Chairman by the members of the Board and shall serve a term of one year.
- D. Meetings and other proceedings shall be in accordance with rules adopted by the Board, which shall be consistent with the provisions of this chapter. Two members shall constitute a quorum.

§ 29-6. <u>Reserved</u> [Contracts with outside persons or firms.

The Council may contract with any qualified person, agency or firm for the performance of services considered to be outside the current capabilities of county personnel during their normal workweek but which are deemed to be necessary in the establishment and operation of the personnel system.]

- § 29-7. Preparation of pay and personnel rules.
- A. The County Administrator shall prepare such pay and personnel rules and amendments thereto as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this chapter and 9 Del. C. § 7006(c). Such rules shall be referred to the Personnel Board for its review and recommendation.
- B. Within 30 days following the receipt of proposed rules or amendments, the Personnel Board shall hold a public hearing for the purpose of discussing and receiving comments upon the proposed rules or amendments. Such public hearing shall be advertised by placing notices in prominent places in the [courthouse.]Sussex County Administration Building. In addition, a notice of the public hearing shall be placed in a newspaper having county-wide distribution at least 10 days prior to the date of the hearing. Within 10 days after the hearing, the Personnel Board shall return the proposed rules or amendments to the Administrator with the recommendations of the Board.
- C. When approved by the Administrator, but within 30 days of their return from the Personnel Board, the rules shall be submitted to the Council, which may adopt them by ordinance, with or without amendment.
- § 29-8. Job classification plan.
- A. The Administrator shall cause an analysis to be made of the duties and responsibilities of all positions in the classified service, and he <u>or she</u> shall recommend a job classification plan. Each position in the classified service shall be assigned to a job class on the basis of the kind and level of its duties and responsibilities, to the end that all positions in the same class shall be sufficiently alike to permit the use of a single title, the same qualifications requirements, the same test of competence and the same pay scale.
- B. The initial classification plan and all revisions thereto which involve the addition or deletion of classes shall be submitted to the County Council by the Administrator. Revisions may consist of the addition, abolishment, consolidation, division or amendment of existing classes.
- C. Within 60 days after receiving the initial classification from the Administrator, the Council shall approve a classification plan.
- § 29-9. Preparation of pay plan.
- A. The County Administrator, in consultation with the Director of Finance and the Director of Human Resources, shall prepare a pay plan consisting of a listing of pay grades, ranges for each grade [and consecutive steps within each range]. The rate or range for each class shall be such as to reflect fairly the differences in duties and

responsibilities and shall be related to compensation for comparable positions in other places of public and private employment.

- B.The Administrator shall submit the pay plan and the rules for administration to the County Council after these rules have been referred to the Personnel Board for its review and recommendation.
- C. Within 60 days after receiving the initial pay plan from the Administrator, the Council shall adopt a pay plan and the rules for administration. The Administrator shall assign each job class to one of the pay ranges provided in the pay plan adopted by the Council.
- D. The Administrator shall include a report of the suitability of the pay plan in his <u>or her</u> annual budget recommendations to the Council. Amendments either through adjustment of rates or by reassignment of job classes to different pay ranges may be proposed at any time during the year. The Council shall take action on the proposed amendments within 60 days after submission by the Administrator. All amendments shall apply uniformly to all positions within the same class.
- § 29-10. Appointments, promotions and veteran's preference.
- A. Original appointments to vacancies occurring after this chapter becomes effective shall be based upon merit, as determined by qualifications set forth in the classification plan. Compensation for new appointments shall be as required by the pay plan rules.
- B. <u>Application procedures and hiring and promotional [E]examinations shall</u> be in such form as will fairly test the abilities and aptitudes of candidates for the duties to be performed <u>in conformance with federal and state law</u> [and may not include any inquiry into the political or religious affiliations, race or national origin of any candidate].
- C. Candidates who qualify for employment shall be placed on an eligible list for the appropriate job class. [in the rank order of the final eligibility scores which they obtained.]
- D. Preference in entrance examinations, but not in promotion, shall be granted to qualified persons who have been members of the Armed Forces of the United States and who seek to enter the service of the county within five years immediately following their honorable discharge from military service. Such preference shall be in the form of points added to the final grades of such persons, provided that they first achieve a passing grade. The preference may be five points for nondisabled veterans and 10 points for persons currently receiving compensation from the United States Veterans' Administration for service-incurred disabilities. The rank order of such persons among

other eligible[s] shall be determined on the basis of their augmented rating.

- E. Promotions.
 - (1) Vacancies shall be filled by promotion from within the county government whenever, in the judgment of the Administrator, it is in the best interest of the county [-]to do so. Promotions shall be on a competitive basis, except where the Administrator finds that the number of persons qualified for promotion is insufficient to justify competition. Promotions shall give appropriate consideration to the applicants' qualifications, record of performance and seniority, in that order of importance.
 - (2) A promotion shall consist of an increase in grade in the pay plan as provided in the pay plan rules.
- F. Pending the availability of an eligible list determined by the Administrator to be appropriate for a class, vacancies may be filled by temporary appointment. Such appointments shall have a maximum duration of six months and may not continue beyond one pay period after the establishment of an appropriate eligible list.
- G. <u>All hiring and promotion decisions will be made without regard to the</u> <u>applicants' race, sex, sexual orientation, religion, national origin, age (40</u> <u>and above), disability, genetic information, marital status, political</u> <u>affiliation or any other category protected by state or federal law.</u>
- § 29-11. [Eligible lists] Selection, Resignation, & Recall.
- A. [Eligible lists, in the order of their priority, shall be reemployment lists, promotional eligible lists and original appointment eligible lists.]

[(1) Reemployment lists shall contain the names of permanent employees laid off, in good standing, for lack of funds or work.]

[(2) Promotional eligible lists and original appointment eligible lists shall be created as provided in § 29-10.]

[(3) Probationary employees laid off for lack of work or lack of funds and probationary employees who resign and whose resignations are withdrawn within one year with the approval of the office head concerned and the Administrator may have their names restored to the eligible list from which their appointment was originally made.] Selection of employees for the classified service shall be based on merit and fitness demonstrated by examination or other evidence of competence. The County may use background checks for applicants for employment, pre-employment screening processes, and procedures for posting vacant positions, or other hiring, promotion, termination, layoff, or recall procedures that are not inconsistent with this ordinance, state or federal law.

- B. When an appointment is to be made to a vacancy, the Administrator [shall] <u>may</u> submit to the [office] <u>department</u> head <u>or his/her designee</u> the names of [the] <u>no more than</u> three persons [ranked highest on the appropriate list] who have indicated willingness to [accept appointment] <u>fill the vacancy; provided, however, that the candidates otherwise qualify</u> <u>for the position</u>. The [office] <u>department</u> head <u>or his/her designee</u> may interview each on the list and recommend his <u>or her</u> choice to the Administrator. [When more than one vacancy is to be filled, the number of names submitted shall equal the number of vacancies plus two.]
- C. [Policies and procedures for administering eligible lists shall be provided in the personnel rules, covering the duration, cancellation, replacement and consolidation of such lists and the removal or suspension of the names of eligibles therefrom.] <u>Classified employees who are laid off due</u> to reduction in force caused by a lack of funds shall be eligible for recall if their position is restored within six months of their layoff. Classified employees who resign from employment in good standing, and who were not subject to disciplinary action at the time of their resignation, and classified employees who are laid off for a period of more than six months, shall be eligible to apply for classified employment in the same manner and subject to the same hiring procedures as other applicants for employment.
- § 29-12. Probation.
- A. Employees [appointed from original appointment eligible lists] <u>hired for</u> <u>the classified service, transferred to a new classified job class</u>, or from promotional eligible lists shall be subject to a period of probation. The regular period of probation shall be six months, provided that the personnel rules may specify a longer or shorter period of probation for certain designated job classes or for extension of the probation period in individual cases. No probationary period may extend beyond [12] 18 months.
- B. The work and conduct of probationary employees shall be subject to close scrutiny and evaluation, and, if found to be below standards <u>or is</u> <u>otherwise unsatisfactory</u> [satisfactory] to the [office] <u>department</u> head <u>or</u> <u>his/her designee</u> and the Administrator, the latter may remove or demote the probationer at any time during the probationary period. Such removal or demotion shall not be subject to review or appeal.
- C. An employee shall be retained beyond the end of the probationary period and granted permanent status unless the Administrator affirms that the

services of the employee have been found not to be satisfactory and recommends that the employee not be given permanent status.

§ 29-13. Rules governing hours of work and leaves of absence.

[After receiving recommendations of the Administrator, the Council shall adopt rules prescribing hours of work and the conditions and length of time for which leaves of absence with pay and leaves of absence without pay may be granted.] <u>The Administrator, with the advice of the County</u> <u>Human Resources Director, may adopt personnel policies and practices</u> that are not inconsistent with this Ordinance, or state or federal law.

§ 29-14. Training.

The Administrator shall encourage the improvement of services by providing employees with opportunities for training, which need not be limited to training for specific jobs but may include training for advancement and for general fitness for public service.

§ 29-15. Conditions [on tenure of service] <u>for Continued Employment;</u> [d] <u>D</u>isciplinary [a]<u>A</u>ction; <u>Resignations; Demotions.</u>

The [tenure] <u>continued employment</u> of every <u>classified</u> employee shall be conditioned on good behavior, <u>compliance with work rules and standards</u> <u>of conduct</u>, and the satisfactory performance of duties as indicated by evaluation reports prepared by the [office] <u>department</u> head <u>or his/her</u> <u>designee</u> and reviewed by the Administrator. Any employee in the classified and unclassified services may be temporarily separated or demoted or permanently demoted or separated by resignation or dismissal as designated by this section.

- A. Whenever there is lack of work or lack of funds requiring reductions in the number of employees in a department or division of the county government, the required reduction shall be made in such job class or classes as the department head <u>or his/her designee</u> may designate and as may be concurred in by the Administrator, provided that employees shall be laid off in the inverse order of their relative length and quality of service, as determined by rules governing the evaluation of service. Within each affected job class, all temporary employees shall be laid off before probationary employees, and all probationary employees shall be laid off before any permanent employees.
- B. When, in the judgment of the Administrator, after consultation with the department head <u>or his/her designee</u>, a[n] <u>non-probationary classified</u> employee's work performance or conduct justifies disciplinary action short of dismissal, the employee may be suspended by the Administrator without pay. [A suspended employee may not request a hearing before

the Personnel Board unless the suspension is for more than five working days or unless the employee has already received a previous suspension within the six months immediately prior thereto.]

- C. A [permanent] <u>non-probationary classified</u> employee may be dismissed or demoted whenever, in the judgment of the Administrator, after consultation with the department head <u>or his/her designee</u>, the employee's work or misconduct so warrants. [When the Administrator decides to take such action, he shall file with the employee and the Personnel Board a written notification containing a statement of the substantial reasons for the action. The employee shall be notified not later than the effective date of the action. The notice shall inform the employee that he shall be allowed two calendar weeks from the effective date of the action to file a reply with the Administrator and the Personnel Board and to request a hearing before the Personnel Board. The pay plan rules shall provide for changes in compensation resulting from demotions.]
- D.When the Administrator decides to impose a suspension of three or more days without pay or dismissal, the Administrator or department head or his/her designee shall notify the employee of the reason(s) for the suspension and provide a summary of the facts supporting such reason(s). The employee shall be given this information no later than the effective date of the suspension or dismissal, and shall be given a predetermination opportunity to be heard in opposition to the suspension or dismissal in accordance with County policy and due process requirements. The Administrator may suspend any non-probationary classified employee with pay and direct the employee's immediate departure or removal from the workplace when in the judgment of the Administrator such action is in the best interest of the County. In such cases, a pre-determination hearing shall be held as soon as practicable.
- E. After the Administrator or department head or his/her designee has provided the employee with the opportunity to be heard in opposition to the suspension or dismissal, the Administrator or department head or his/her designee shall issue a decision (the "Decision") regarding whether to suspend or terminate the employee. The Administrator or department head or his/her designee may issue the Decision orally at the conclusion of the hearing or may take the matter under advisement. In either case, the Administrator or department head or his/her designee shall issue the Decision in written form no later than the close of business on the next business day after the day of the hearing. If the Decision is not announced at the conclusion of the hearing, the Administrator or department head or his/her designee shall advise the employee of whether the employee is suspended pending the Decision and, if so, whether the suspension is with or without pay. The Decision shall state the reason(s) why the action is being taken and shall

summarize the facts supporting the reason(s) for the action. A copy of the Decision shall be provided to the employee.

- F.Non-probationary classified employees whose employment is suspended without pay for three or more days or who are dismissed from employment may file an appeal with the Personnel Board ("the Appeal"). The Appeal shall be filed by notifying the Administrator in writing within two calendar weeks after the employee's receipt of the Decision of the employee's request for a hearing before the Personnel Board. The Appeal shall state the reasons that the employee disagrees with the Decision and shall summarize the facts supporting the Appeal. Failure to substantially comply with this requirement will result in the dismissal of the Appeal.
- <u>G. [D.]</u> If the employee files [a reply] <u>an Appeal</u> and requests a <u>Personnel</u> <u>Board</u> hearing [within the prescribed period] <u>as set forth in this</u> <u>paragraph</u>, the Personnel Board shall [schedule] <u>hold</u> a hearing within [10] <u>21 calendar</u> days after receiving the appeal <u>unless the employee</u> <u>requests additional time to prepare for the hearing</u>. At the discretion of the employee, the hearing may be private or open to the public, and a complete record of all proceedings during the hearing may be made should the employee be willing to bear the full cost of the preparation of such a record.
- H. The Personnel Board shall not review any documents or engage in any discussions relating to the termination or suspension prior to the hearing, except as needed for the purpose of issuing any subpoenas requested by the employee or the Administrator. The Personnel Board shall issue subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses who are identified by the employee or the Administrator sufficiently in advance of the hearing to permit service of the subpoenas. The Administrator and the Personnel Board shall not be represented by the same counsel. The County Attorney shall advise the Personnel Board. The Administrator may retain counsel for the administration to represent the administration in any matter brought to the Personnel Board. The employee may be represented by counsel.
- 1. Hearing before the Personnel Board shall be recorded by stenographic or other means. The Administrator (or counsel for the Administrator) shall present evidence to support the reasons for the termination or suspension. The employee may present evidence in opposition to the termination or suspension. The employee and the Administrator, or their counsel, may examine and cross-examine witnesses and submit documents to the Personnel Board. Testimony before the Personnel Board shall be under oath. The Personnel Board may also question witnesses. The evidence presented before the Personnel Board shall be confined to the matters that the Personnel Board deems relevant to the

Decision. Formal rules of evidence shall not apply. The Personnel Board shall advise the employee and Administrator as soon as practicable, and no later than 15 business days after the conclusion of the hearing.[E. In conducting a hearing, the proceedings shall be informal, and it shall be assumed that the action complained of was taken in good faith unless proven otherwise.]

- <u>J.</u> [F.]If the Board finds the action was based on [political, religious or racial prejudice] <u>the employee's race, sex, sexual orientation, religion, national origin, age (40 and above),disability, genetic information, marital status, political affiliation, or any other characteristic or activity protected by law, or that the Administrator failed to [follow] <u>substantially comply with</u> the [proper] procedures outlined in Subsection C, the employee shall be reinstated to his <u>or her</u> former position without loss of pay. In all other cases wherein the Board does not sustain the action of the Administrator, the Board's findings and recommendations shall be advisory in nature, and the Administrator may affirm the original action or modify it pursuant to the Board's recommendations.</u>
- <u>K</u>. [G.]An employee may resign by filing his <u>or her</u> reasons with the Administrator. An employee resigning in good standing may be reinstated without competitive examination to any position in the same class if there is need for his <u>or her</u> services within two years after the date of resignation.
- L. A classified employee may be demoted, transferred, or reassigned whenever, in the judgment of the Administrator, after consultation with the department head or his/her designee, the employee's work performance, conduct, or the needs of the County so warrant. The pay plan rules shall provide for changes in compensation resulting from demotions. An employee who is demoted and who as a result suffers a reduction in pay may appeal the Administrator's decision to the County Personnel Board within two calendar weeks of date he or she is notified of the decision. The appeal shall be governed by the process set forth above.

§ 29-16. Records.

The Administrator in conjunction with the Director of Human Resources shall maintain adequate records of the proceedings of the Personnel Board and of his <u>or her</u> own official acts, the examination record of every candidate and the employment record of every employee. Employee records shall be considered confidential, but each employee's records shall be available to that employee during regular working hours, and such records shall be available to the individual and the Personnel Board in the event of any appeal based upon rights established by law. § 29-17. Investigations and hearings.

During the course of any investigation or hearing, the Personnel Board or the Administrator may request any employee of the county to attend and give testimony. The Personnel Board shall request the attendance of employees as requested by any employee appealing to the Board. Any employee refusing to do so may be subject to disciplinary action as provided in § 29-15.

- § 29-18. General prohibitions.
- A. Employees in the classified service shall be selected without regard to political considerations, may not be required to contribute to any political purpose and may not engage in improper political activity as described in Subsection E of this section.
- B. No person shall be appointed to or removed from or in any way favored or discriminated against with respect to any county position or appointive county administrative office because of [race, color, national origin, sex or political or religious affiliations] <u>race, sex, sexual</u> <u>orientation, religion, national origin, age (40 and above) disability,</u> <u>genetic information, marital status political affiliation, or any other</u> <u>characteristic or activity protected by state or federal law</u>.
- C. No person shall willfully make any false statement, certificate, mark, rating or report in regard to any test, certification or appointment made under any provision of this chapter or in any manner commit or attempt to commit any fraud preventing the impartial execution of this chapter and the rules and regulations of the personnel system of Sussex County. Persons doing so shall be subject to immediate discharge.
- D. No person shall defeat, deceive or obstruct any person in his right to examination, eligibility, certification or appointment under this chapter or furnish to any person any special or secret information for the purpose of affecting the rights or prospects of any person with respect to employment in the classified service.
- E. No employee in the classified service shall, during regular working hours, take any part in the management or affairs of any political party or in any political campaign or perform any service for any political party, except to exercise his <u>or her</u> right as a citizen privately to express his <u>or her</u> opinion and to cast his <u>or her</u> vote.

ARTICLE II. Attendance and Leave Policy

[Added 10-24-1972 by Ord. No. 11]

§ 29-19. Scope.

[Amended 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

The personnel rules shall apply to both the unclassified and classified services as defined in § 29-3 and shall be prepared, adopted and amended as provided in § 29-7. Exceptions to the scope of coverage or procedure are as stated in the rules. All references herein to the singular shall include the plural, to the plural shall include the singular and to any gender shall include all genders.

§ 29-20. Standard workweek; exceptions.

- A. The standard workweek for salaried employees shall be that which is recommended by the Administrator and approved by the Council. It shall consist of between 35 and 40 hours per week, including breaks, the maximum number and duration of which shall also be determined by the Administrator with the approval of the Council.
- B. The Administrator may recommend to the Council for its approval the assignment of certain positions or classes to a work schedule which differs from that considered to be standard for the remainder of the county employees. Upon the receipt of Council approval, such a schedule shall become the standard schedule for those employees affected.
- § 29-21. Part-time employment.
- A. Part-time employment shall include all employment for less than the standard workweek.
- B. Part-time work shall be performed only according to schedules established by the [office] <u>department</u> head <u>or his or her designee</u> as may be required to accomplish the assigned functions of the office. The expense of part-time employment shall be governed by Council-approved wage and salary budgets for each office concerned.
- § 29-22. Holidays.
- A. All employees, except part-time employees, shall receive their regular pay for the holidays as designated in 1 Del. C., Ch. 5, as it may be, and any other days specifically designated by the County Council.

- B. When any holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding business day shall be considered the legal holiday. When any holiday falls on a Sunday, the following business day shall be considered the legal holiday.
- C. An employee must be in a paid status the scheduled day prior and the scheduled day following the holiday to qualify for the paid holiday.
- § 29-23. [Leave for death in immediate family.] Bereavement
- <u>A.</u> An employee is entitled leave, not to exceed [four] <u>five</u> working days, with pay because of a death in the "immediate family," defined as father, mother, <u>legal guardian standing in loco parentis, step parent</u>, spouse, <u>civil union/domestic partner</u>, brother, sister, <u>step</u> <u>brother/sister</u>, son, daughter, <u>step son/daughter</u>, <u>son/daughter-in law</u>, [or] parent-in-law, <u>grandchild</u>, and step grandchild. These [four] <u>five</u> days are not to be deducted from accumulated sick leave.
- B. Leave due to the death of a "near relative", defined as grandparent, step grandparent, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, brother-in-law or sister-in-law or grandparent-in-law will be granted time off with pay up to three (3) consecutive days. Leave time equating to one (1) paid day may be granted in the death of a first cousin.
- § 29-24. Sick leave.
- A. Sick leave shall be granted to employees in the classified and unclassified services for the following reasons:

[Amended 8-7-1973 by Ord. No. 14; 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

- (1) Personal illness or physical incapacity resulting from causes beyond the employee's control.
- (2) Illness in the household of the employee requiring quarantine as certified by a physician or public health [9]officer.
- (3) Medical, dental or optical appointments which cannot be scheduled in after-duty hours provided that the employee has made every effort to arrange such appointments at a time before or after his regular workday.
- (4) Illness in the household requiring intensive care of a member of the "immediate family," defined as father, mother, spouse, brother, sister, son, daughter, parent-in-law or any relative residing in the same home or any person with whom the employee has made his home or illness

outside the household requiring intensive care of such a person, supported in writing by a licensed practicing physician.

B. Accrual Rate

- (1) Full-time 7 hour employees in the unclassified and classified service shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of eight and three-fourths (8³/₄) hours per month.
- (2) Full-time 8 hour employees in the unclassified and classified service shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of ten (10) hours per month.
- (3) Full-time 10 hour employees in the unclassified and classified service shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of twelve and a half (12.50) hours per month.
- (4) Full-time 12 hour employees in the unclassified and classified service shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of fifteen (15) hours per month.
- C. [B. Full-time thirty-five-hour per week employees in the unclassified and classified service shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of 8 3/4 hours per month. Full-time forty-hour per week employees in the unclassified and classified service shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of 10 hours per month. Full-time twelve-hour shift personnel in the unclassified and classified service shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of 15 hours per month. However, i] In the event the employee voluntarily leaves the employment of the county and is in good standing, the employee will receive one day's pay for every one day of accrued sick leave up to a maximum accumulation of 45 days and thereafter one day's pay for every two days of accrued sick leave above 45 days to a maximum of 90 days. In case of voluntary resignation, the employee must give two weeks' written notice of intention to resign to be eligible for this payment. In the event of the death of an employee, one day's pay will be given for every one day of accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of 90 days. [Permanent part-time employees shall be eligible for sick leave at the rate of 1/2 day per month, but such employees shall not accumulate more than 10 days of sick leave.] Pay for and accumulation of sick leave shall be based on the normal workday for the employee concerned.

[Amended 6-21-1983 by Ord. No. 133; 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

[C. In the event of extended illness beyond accumulated sick leave and vacation, a permanent employee may submit to the Administrator a request for an extension of sick leave at 1/2 pay of up to 15 days. Such a request must be in writing and must be accompanied with supportive statements from a licensed practicing physician. The Administrator may approve such a request if, in his opinion, the previous service of the employee warrants favorable consideration. An employee may, for a

period following return from sick leave, work on a part-time basis if approved by the Administrator in advance. Compensation will be for time actually worked.]

[Amended 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

- D. In accordance with the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), [A]after an absence of three consecutive working days, the [Administrator] department head or his/her designee may require the employee to present a statement from a licensed practicing physician certifying that the employee's condition prevented him or her from performing the duties of his or her position.
- E. To be compensated for absence on sick leave, it is the responsibility of the employee to report his <u>or her</u> inability to be on duty. Failure to notify the county within two hours of the time established for beginning his <u>or her</u> duties may result in loss of pay for that day.
- F. Absence for a fraction of a day that is chargeable to sick leave in accordance with these provisions shall be charged proportionately, but in an amount not smaller than [one hour] <u>fifteen minute increments</u> for full-time employees. [and 1/4 of a day for part-time employees.]

[Amended 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

- G. An employee absent from work on a legal holiday, during paid sick leave, on vacation, for disability arising from injuries sustained in the course of his <u>or her</u> employment, on authorized leave or on leave of absence without pay for less than one month in any calendar year shall continue to accumulate sick leave at the regularly prescribed rate during such absence as though he <u>or she</u> were on duty.
- H. Individual records of all sick leave credit and use shall be maintained as part of the personnel record of the county. The [Personnel] <u>Human</u> <u>Resources</u> Director shall ensure that each county employee eligible for paid sick leave is informed at least as often as once each six months of his <u>or her</u> accumulated sick leave to date.

[Amended 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

§ 29-25. Vacation leave.

A. Vacation leave shall be granted to classified and unclassified employees according to the provisions of this chapter. Requests for vacation shall be submitted to the [office head of the employee's department on approved forms provided by the Personnel Office] <u>employee's</u> <u>supervisor</u>. Approval of vacation requests is at the discretion of each office or department head <u>or his/her designee</u> subject to the provisions

of this chapter [and after receiving certification from the Personnel Office] <u>verifying</u> that the employee has sufficient accumulated vacation time to cover the period requested.

[Amended 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

B. Vacations with pay shall vest as of the last day of each month. Employees who qualify for vacation leave on the vesting day and <u>voluntarily</u> resign or are otherwise terminated <u>and in good standing</u> from the payroll of the county or in the event of the death of any employee, such employee, or his estate in the event of his death, shall receive a vacation allowance at the time of termination equal to one day's pay at his current rate for the employee's position for each day of vacation leave accumulated to the date of his <u>or her</u> termination. However, in the event of voluntary resignation, two weeks' written notice of intention to resign [are] <u>is</u> required in order to be eligible for this payment in lieu of vacation.

[Amended 6-21-1983 by Ord. No. 133; 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

- [C. No employee shall be granted paid vacation leave during the probationary period of his or her employment, except that an office head may recommend to the Administrator that an exception be made for good cause, but paid vacation leave shall not exceed one day for each month of employment.]
- [D] C. Accrual rate; construal.

[Amended 6-21-1983 by Ord. No. 133; 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

- (1) Accrual rate.
 - (a) [Permanent]<u>F[f]</u>ull-time [thirty-five-hour per week] <u>7 hour</u> employees with nine years of service or less shall earn vacation at the rate of <u>eight and three-fourths (8 ³/₄)</u> hours per month.
 - (b) [Permanent]<u>F[f]</u>ull-time [thirty-five-hour per week] <u>7 hour</u> employees with 10 to 14 years of service shall earn vacation at the rate of ten and a half (10 $\frac{1}{2}$) hours per month.
 - (c) [Permanent]<u>F[f]</u>ull-time [thirty-five-hour per week] <u>7 hour</u> employees with 15 years of service or more shall earn vacation at the rate of <u>twelve and a quarter (12 ¼)</u> hours per month.
 - (d) [Permanent]<u>F[f]</u>ull-time [forty-hour per week] <u>8 hour</u> employees with nine years of service or less shall earn vacation at the rate of <u>ten (10)</u> hours per month.

- (e) [Permanent]<u>F[f]</u>ull-time [forty-hour per week] <u>8 hour</u> employees with 10 to 14 years of service shall earn vacation at the rate of <u>twelve (12)</u> hours per month.
- (f) [Permanent]<u>F[f]ull-time [forty-hour per week] 8 hour employees with 15 years of service or more shall earn vacation at the rate of <u>fourteen</u> (14) hours per month.</u>
- (g) Full-time 10 hour employees with nine years of service or less shall earn vacation at the rate of twelve and a half (12.5) hours per month.
- (h) Full-time 10 hour employees with 10 to 14 years of service shall earn vacation at the rate of fifteen (15) hours per month.
- (i) Full-time 10 hour employees with 15 years of service or more shall earn vacation at the rate of seventeen and a half (17.5) hours per month.
- (j) [(g) Permanent]<u>Full-time 12[</u>twelve-]hour <u>employees</u> [shift personnel] with nine years of service or less shall earn vacation at the rate of <u>fifteen (15)</u> hours per month.
- (k) [(h) Permanent]Full-time 12[twelve-]hour employees[shift personnel] with 10 to 14 years of service shall earn vacation at the rate of eighteen (18) hours per month.
- (I) [(i) Permanent]<u>Full-time 12[twelve-]hour employees [shift personnel]</u> with 15 years of service or more shall earn vacation at the rate of <u>twenty one (21)</u> hours per month.
- [(j) Permanent part-time employees shall earn vacation credit on the basis of one day per month up to a maximum of ten days with vacation time paid at the regular part-time salary rate.]
- (2) For the purpose of this policy, any employee placed on the payroll by the tenth day of any month shall be considered to have a full month's service in that month.
- (3) Pay for and accumulation of vacation shall be based on the normal workday for the employee concerned.
- (4) Maximum vacation accrual may not exceed two times the annual accrual rate as of December 31 of each year.
- E. (Reserved). Editor's Note: Former Subsection E, as amended 6-21-1983 by Ord. No. 133, which dealt with accrual of vacation, was repealed 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695.

- F. Office or department heads <u>or their designees</u> shall schedule vacation leaves with particular regard to the operating requirements of the office, seniority of employees and employee requests insofar as the latter is practicable. The scheduling of vacation periods is always subject to be changed at the discretion of the office or department head <u>or his/her</u> <u>designee</u> in the event of changing circumstances or emergency needs.
- G. One week of vacation must be taken in each vacation year.

[Amended 6-21-1983 by Ord. No. 133]

- H. Individual records of vacation leave credit and use shall be maintained as part of the personnel records of the county.
- § 29-26. Reserved. [Leave for death of near relative.

Leave due to the death of a "near relative," defined as first cousin, grandparent, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, brother-in-law or sister-in-law or other person, shall be subtracted from vacation leave. Leave for the funeral of such relative shall not be subtracted from vacation leave but shall be granted at the sole discretion of the office or department head based upon the existing work requirements of such office or department and as approved by the Administrator.]

§ 29-27. Computation of vacation time.

For the purpose of computing vacation time, the time of actual service will be counted even though such time may predate the adoption of this chapter.

§ 29-28. Medical leave.

[Amended 6-26-1990 by Ord. No. 695]

- [A. After successful completion of probationary employment, an employee may request a medical leave of absence without pay for a period not to exceed six months. The request must be submitted in writing and a medical certificate must be presented to verify the need. The date of initiation of the request may be varied for good cause at the discretion of the Administrator.] <u>The County will comply with all requirements set forth</u> in the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA).
- [B. In order that the status of an employee on leave and that of the substitute, if any, may at any time be determined, such leave shall be given for definite stipulated periods. If, on the day following the expiration of a leave, an extension is not requested and granted and the employee has not returned to his position, the employee shall be considered to have resigned from his position.]

- [C. At the expiration of a medical leave, an employee reporting for duty shall be returned to the same position as that filled by him when such leave was granted. An employee may return to duty before the expiration of his leave, provided that he has certification from his attending physician.]
- [D. Should the position of an employee on medical leave be abolished or consolidated, he shall, upon return from leave, be given employment in a comparable position or, if that is not possible, in a lower position for which he is qualified and in which a vacancy exists. Compensation shall be commensurate with the position assigned, seniority and the level of proficiency of the employee.]
- [E. Seniority shall accumulate during all medical leaves of absence.]
- § 29-29. Military leave.
- A. Any permanent employee who is either inducted or who volunteers for active military service in the United States Armed Services shall be granted a military leave of absence without pay which shall extend for 90 calendar days beyond the termination of compulsory service or the first enlistment, as applicable. Such employee shall be entitled to be restored to the position which he <u>or she</u> vacated without loss of seniority, provided that application for reemployment is made with the Administrator within the ninety-day period after his <u>or her</u> release from active duty from military service, and provided that he <u>or she</u> is physically and mentally capable of performing satisfactorily in the position. <u>The County will comply with all requirements set forth in the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA).</u>
- B. In the event that a position vacated by a person entering the armed services no longer exists at the time he <u>or she</u> qualifies to return to work, such person shall be entitled to be reemployed in another position of the same class in the county service, provided that such reemployment does not necessitate the laying off of another person who was appointed at an earlier date than such person returning from military leave.
- C. Any permanent [or permanent part-time] employee who is a member of the National Guard or an organized military reserve of the United States will be entitled to a <u>paid</u> leave of absence not to exceed a total of 10 working days in any one calendar year for the purpose of <u>active duty</u>, military training or special duty. [Employees who are serving as members of such military organizations shall receive only that pay to make up the difference between military pay and county pay, and to cover employee benefits paid by the county, for the ten-day annual leave of absence for military training]. The county shall not be liable for wages or benefits beyond this ten-day period. The employee must request military leave at least 10 days <u>or as soon as practicable</u> prior to the

effective date of the leave and submit with his <u>or her</u> request a copy of orders assigning him <u>or her</u> to active duty or training.

[Amended 3-8-1977 by Ord. No. 26]

- D. Military training or special duty leaves of absence shall not be deducted from vacation leave or in any other way result in a loss of seniority, accumulated sick leave or any of the other benefits provided county employees.
- E. Any permanent employee who is a member of an organized military reserve of the United States or the Delaware National Guard and who is ordered to perform emergency duty under the supervision of the United States government or the State of Delaware shall be granted a leave of absence during the period of such activity. [Any such employee shall receive the pay differential in the amount by which the employee's normal wages, calculated on the basis of a standard workweek, exceed any pay received as a result of performing emergency duty. A copy of the employee's military pay voucher shall be submitted with his request for pay differential compensation.]
- § 29-30. Special leaves of absence.
- A. Any county employee whose place of employment is in a town wherein he <u>or she</u> is a resident active volunteer fireman may, with the approval of his <u>or her</u> office or department head <u>or his/her designee</u>, be permitted to respond to fire calls during his <u>or her</u> regular hours of employment without loss of pay, vacation, sick leave or personal leave credit.
- B. Any employee may be granted administrative leave of absence with pay to participate in or attend training courses, sessions, conferences or seminars and to engage in other similar job-related activities. Such leave will be granted only if the absence of the employee will not interfere with proper operating efficiency of the county government. Leave for any individual employee shall not aggregate more than five days in any fiscal year. Traveling expenses, lodging, conference fees, tuition and similar expenses incurred during such leave may be paid for by the county. Requests for such leaves up to the maximum five days shall be submitted through the office or department head <u>or his/her designee</u> to the Administrator for approval or disapproval. Exceptions to the five-day limit on administrative leave shall be submitted to the Administrator, who may approve them for good cause.
- C. The Administrator may authorize an employee to be absent without pay for personal and/or undisclosed reasons for a period or periods not to exceed five working days in any calendar year.

- D. A permanent [or permanent part-time] employee ordered to serve as a juror or witness in a court of law shall be permitted a <u>paid</u> leave of absence from his <u>or her</u> regular position for this purpose. [Such employee shall receive compensation only in the amount by which his normal wage, based upon a standard workweek for the position, exceeds the compensation received while on leave.]
- § 29-31. Leaves of absence without pay.

An employee who desires a leave of absence without pay for a period of less than three months shall request such leave through his or her department head <u>or his/her designee</u> to the Administrator, who may grant such leave, subject to the approval of the Council.

§ 29-31A. Short-term and long-term disability benefits.

[Added 10-4-2011 by Ord. No. 2223 Editor's Note: This ordinance also provided that it would become effective January 1, 2012.]

- A. An employee shall be deemed disabled for the purposes of this section if such employee has a physical or mental disability which prevents the employee from performing the duties of such employee's position, as determined by the County in its sole discretion. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, eligibility for disability benefits under Subsections B and C of this section shall be contingent upon meeting the requirements of those respective subsections.
- B. Short-term disability.
 - (1) A permanent, full-time employee in classified or unclassified service who becomes disabled shall, beginning on the date of such employee's disability, become eligible to receive short-term disability benefits pursuant to this Subsection B. Such short-term disability benefits shall continue for as long as such individual remains disabled, up to a maximum of 182 days (26 weeks). During the sixty-day period beginning on the date of such employee's disability (the "sixty-day elimination period"), such disabled employee shall not be eligible to receive the benefit described in Subsection B(3) below but shall be required to use any accrued leave that the disabled employee has accrued but not used. The sixty-day elimination period shall be considered part of the 182 days (26 weeks) of short-term disability for purposes of this subsection and not an addition thereto.
 - (2) If an employee returns to work for one day or less during the sixty-day elimination period but cannot continue to work thereafter, the period worked shall not be considered to have interrupted the sixty-day elimination period.

(3) Disabled employees receiving short-term disability under this section shall remain eligible to receive medical and dental benefits through Sussex County's medical plan on the same basis that such disabled employee received such benefits prior to ceasing active work for Sussex County due to such disability. A disabled employee receiving short-term disability benefits under Sussex County's short-term disability plan shall continue to accrue sick leave, vacation time, applicable holiday time, creditable service, and pay increases.

[Amended 2-7-2012 by Ord. No. 2238 Editor's Note: This ordinance also provided that it would become effective January 1, 2012.]

- (4) A disabled employee eligible for short-term disability under this subsection shall, for each pay period after the sixty-day elimination period while the disabled employee remains eligible for short-term disability under this subsection, receive 75% of the amount of regular base wages or salary such disabled employee earned or would have earned if he or she had worked regular full-time hours during the pay period immediately prior to becoming disabled. A disabled employee eligible for short-term disability payments under this Subsection B(4) may use his or her unused accrued leave to supplement the short-term disability benefit to equal up to no more than 100% of pre-disability compensation.
- (5) Once an employee exhausts his or her sixty-day elimination period, the employee shall not be eligible to utilize unused accrued leave in lieu of application for short-term disability.
- (6) If an employee receiving disability benefits under this section returns to work on a full-time basis for 15 consecutive calendar days or longer, any succeeding period of disability for which the employee becomes eligible for disability benefits under this section shall constitute a new period of disability with a corresponding sixty-day elimination period.
- (7) Upon the exhaustion by an employee of the maximum short-term disability benefit period set forth above in Subsection B(1), and provided the employee has exhausted his or her Family Medical Leave Act of 1993 ("FMLA") (26 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq.) entitlement and/or is not FMLA eligible, such employee's employment with the County shall terminate, and such employee shall not accrue any service or retirement benefits.
- C. Long-term disability.
 - (1) After receiving short-term disability benefits under this section for 182 days (26 weeks), a disabled employee who continues to meet the definition of "disability" under the provisions of the long-term disability

benefit plan, if any, that is maintained by Sussex County at such time and who was a permanent, full-time employee in classified or unclassified service prior to such disability shall be eligible to begin receiving long-term disability benefits under the long-term disability benefit plan, if any, that is maintained by Sussex County at such time. Such long-term disability benefit plan shall be fully insured, and the terms of the long-term disability insurance policy shall govern the provision of the long-term disability benefit plan.

- (2) The employment status of any individual receiving long-term disability benefits under this section shall be terminated and no service or retirement benefits shall accrue during any period for which a disabled former employee receives long-term disability benefits under this section. Upon the termination of such disabled former employee's employment status, the disabled former employee shall have the option to have such disabled former employee's unused sick leave and vacation time cashed out and paid to such disabled former employee; or if such disabled former employee feels that he or she will be able to return to work with in the six-month period immediately following the end of his or her short-term disability eligibility, the disabled former employee may elect to have his or her unused leave banked with the County until such disabled former employee's reinstatement as an employee of the County, provided that if such disabled former employee is not able to return to work within such six-month period, the disabled former employee's leave shall be cashed out and paid to such disabled former employee.
- (3) Disabled former employees who are receiving long-term disability benefits under this section shall continue to be eligible for medical benefits under Sussex County's medical plan on the same basis as regular, active, full-time employees of Sussex County until the disabled former employee becomes eligible for Medicare Parts A and B coverage, whether or not the disabled former employee enrolls in Medicare Parts A and B, at which point such disabled former employee's medical coverage under Sussex County's medical plan shall become secondary to Medicare coverage. If a disabled former employee's disability benefits terminate prior to becoming eligible for Medicare Parts A and B, such disabled former employee's coverage under Sussex County's medical plan shall terminate. Sussex County shall have the right to amend, modify or terminate the medical coverage of disabled former employees from time to time and at any time.
- (4) Notwithstanding Subsection C(1) above, eligibility for long-term disability benefits under this section for the initial two-year period beginning upon the day after the one-hundred-eighty-two-day period for short-term disability shall only continue if the disabled former

employee satisfies the definition of "disability" under the County's long-term disability benefit plan.

- (5) A disabled former employee eligible for long-term disability under this subsection shall, while the disabled former employee remains eligible for long-term disability under this subsection, receive 60% of the amount of regular wages or salary such disabled former employee earned or would have earned if he or she had worked regular full-time hours during the pay period immediately prior to becoming disabled, offset by certain other amounts received by the former employee, including but not limited to social security disability benefits, as set forth in the policy of insurance under which the long-term disability benefits are provided.
- D. Neither the short-term disability benefits nor the long-term disability benefits set forth in this section shall be subject to vesting. The shortterm disability benefits and long-term disability benefits may be amended, modified, terminated or suspended by the County Council at any time and from time to time.

ARTICLE III. Pay Plan Rules

[Added 10-24-1972 by Ord. No. 11]

§ 29-32. Preparation, submission and revision.

The procedures for preparing, submitting and revising the pay plan are provided in § 29-9 above and shall apply to this Article.

§ 29-33. Standard workweek

The standard workweek shall be as established by the Council upon the recommendation of the Administrator as provided in § 29-20 of this chapter.

§ 29-34. Compensation for part-time work.

- A. Compensation for part-time work shall be at the equivalent hourly rate of the salary appropriate to the grade of the employee for the hours actually worked.
- B. No employee shall be employed in two or more part-time positions if the aggregate pay exceeds 100% of the normal full-time pay for the lower position.

- § 29-35. Compensation for overtime and holiday work.
- A. [Compensation for overtime work shall be paid only when the department head of the department concerned or his authorized representative has given prior approval for overtime work.] The employee's department head or his/her designee must approve all overtime prior to the employee working overtime. Failure to obtain such approval is considered a violation of policy and shall subject the employee to discipline.
- B. Hourly employees shall receive compensation equal to 1 1/2 times their normal rate of pay for hours worked in excess of the normal five-day workweek. Time and a half shall be paid for work performed on Saturday or Sunday when 35 regular hours have been worked during the regular workweek. [Where fewer than 35 hours have been worked due to excused absence, then time and a half may be permitted for Saturday and Sunday work.]
- [C. Salaried employees in the classified service shall receive overtime compensation at a rate of 1 1/2 times the normal rate for hours worked in excess of 35 hours of work per week. Time and a half shall be paid for work performed on Saturday and Sunday when 35 hours have already been worked during the immediately preceding five working days. The regular workday for salaried employees other than those specific exceptions contained herein shall consist of seven hours, and the regular workweek shall consist of 35 hours, Monday through Friday inclusive. The starting time for these employees will generally be 8:30 a.m. and the quitting time about 4:30 p.m., with one hour for lunch.]
- [D] <u>C</u>. If, in the course of his <u>or her</u> regular service, an employee in the classified service is required to work on a day observed as a legal holiday, he <u>or she</u> shall be given an additional day off, or, if such additional day off cannot be given because of the work situation[,] <u>as determined by the employee's department head, or his/her designee</u> he <u>or she</u> shall be paid additionally at straight time for each hour worked on the day observed as a holiday, even though such time worked may be part of his <u>or her</u> regular service. If an employee is required to work on a day observed as a holiday which is not in the course of his <u>or her</u> regular service, he <u>or she</u> shall be compensated additionally in accordance with the rules on compensation in emergency overtime service. Work on holidays shall require the prior approval of the Administrator.
- § 29-36. Rate of pay for new employees.

Generally, a new employee shall be paid the minimum rate of pay for his <u>or</u> <u>her</u> class. Exceptions on starting salaries may be granted upon the written prior approval of the County Administrator in the following areas:

- A. The minimum rate for each class is based upon the assumption that a new employee meets the minimum qualifications stated in the class specification. [If it becomes necessary to appoint a new employee of lesser qualifications, he shall be started at one or possibly two steps below the minimum rate of the class.]
- B. If a new employee exceeds the minimum qualifications, <u>the employee</u> <u>may start at a higher salary than the minimum starting salary.</u> [he may be appointed at the second step or in unusual cases at a still higher step. Cases shall be thoroughly analyzed and measured against objective standards. In addition, every effort shall be made to recruit a qualified employee who will accept appointment at the minimum rate of the class.]

§ 29-37. Transfers.

Upon the approval of the Administrator, an employee may be transferred from one position in the classified service to another. Any employee temporarily transferred shall be paid, during the period for which he <u>or she</u> is transferred, the minimum rate of the new salary range. [or one increment step above his existing rate, whichever is higher. Temporary transfers shall be for a period of no longer than 30 working days.]

§ 29-38. Promotions.

When an employee is promoted to a position in a higher [class] <u>grade</u>, his <u>or her</u> salary shall be increased to the minimum rate for the higher [class] <u>grade[</u>. In the case of overlapping ranges, the promoted employee shall be increased to the step immediately above his present level of compensation, but in no case shall the increase be less than 5% of the employee's former level of compensation.] or a 5% increase, whichever is greater. If the employee's promotion is higher than one grade, the employee will receive 5% for the first grade and 1% for each subsequent grade.

§ 29-39. Demotions.

An employee who is demoted for disciplinary reasons,<u>transfers to another</u> <u>position or is unable to perform the essential function of their position and</u> <u>moves into a lower grade may receive a decrease in pay.</u> [from one classification to another shall be reduced to the maximum rate for the new classification or he shall continue at his same pay rate, whichever is lower.]

§ 29-40. Annual salary review.

A. The salary of each employee shall be reviewed annually. [on the employee's anniversary date of his employment, except those employed before July 1, 1972, whose anniversary date for this purpose shall be considered to be July 1, 1972.] [All of the personnel records, as well as

length of service, shall be considered in making recommendations, with a major emphasis placed on the evaluation of services rendered. After the above analysis by the department head, a certificate of satisfactory service, which shall be approved by the County Administrator, shall entitle an employee to a one-step increase. This annual salary review shall continue until the maximum step of the class has been reached.]

B. [No employee shall be entitled to more than one step increase each year except those employees who receive promotional increases and those employees who receive merit increases approved by the Administrator. A merit increase shall generally be a five-percent increase in one year.] Salary ranges and merit increases shall be established by County Council upon the recommendation of the Administrator through the annual budget process. The date of the annual salary review will remain unaffected by a promotional increase.

Section 2. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective on , 2013.

<u>Synopsis</u>

This Ordinance amends Chapter 29 of the Code of Sussex County governing Sussex County personnel to update the provisions to conform to and comply with Federal law, State law and current personnel practices.

Deleted text is in brackets. Additional text is underlined.

GINA A. JENNINGS, MBA, MPA FINANCE DIRECTOR (302) 855-7741 T (302) 855-7749 F gjennings@sussexcountyde.gov





MEMORANDUM

- TO: Sussex County Council The Honorable Michael H. Vincent, President The Honorable Samuel R. Wilson, Jr., Vice President The Honorable George B. Cole The Honorable Joan R. Deaver The Honorable Vance Phillips
- FROM: Gina A. Jennings Finance Director
- RE: CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR_EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING
- DATE: July 24, 2013

I am pleased to announce that the Sussex County Government has been awarded, for the eleventh consecutive year, the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government Finance Officers Association. This award is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by a government and its management. It reflects the collaboration of efforts from many County employees.

To me this award means more this year than in the past. For the first time, we created the entire report in-house without external assistance. This internal effort saved the County over \$30,000, a savings that we will see year to year.

Our staff on a day-to-day basis ensures that County finances remain strong. Kathy Roth, Jeff James, Keith Moore, Sylwia Wisniewska, and the rest of the Finance Department deserve special thanks for their extra efforts in achieving this award.

pc: Mr. Todd F. Lawson

HAL GODWIN DEPUTY COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR (302) 854-5060 T (302) 855-7749 F hgodwin@sussexcountyde.gov





Memorandum

- TO: Sussex County Council The Honorable Michael H. Vincent, President The Honorable Samuel R. Wilson, Jr., Vice President The Honorable George B. Cole The Honorable Joan R. Deaver The Honorable Vance Phillips
- FROM: Hal Godwin Deputy County Administrator

- RE: <u>Excessive Dog Barking Ordinance</u>
- DATE: July 26, 2013

During Tuesday, July 16th Council meeting, I presented an Ordinance relating to "Excessive Dog Barking" and a few changes were requested. An Ordinance, reviewed by Legal Counsel, with these changes is attached for your review and possible introduction.

If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact me.

HG/kac

Attachments

pc: Mr. Todd Lawson Mr. Eddy Parker Mr. Alan Holloway

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT CHAPTER 97 OF THE CODE OF SUSSEX COUNTY, ENTITLED "EXCESSIVE DOG BARKING," WHICH SHALL DEFINE "EXCESSIVE DOG BARKING" AND CREATE ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS AND PENALTIES FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS CHAPTER

WHEREAS, excessive dog barking has been a problem for some period of time in Sussex County; and

WHEREAS, many Sussex County residents have sought relief from excessive dog barking by contacting police and their elected officials; and

WHEREAS, Sussex County Council desires to adopt an ordinance to define excessive dog barking and create enforcement provisions and penalties for failure to comply with this Chapter.

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. The Code of Sussex County is hereby amended by creating a new Chapter 97, entitled, "Excessive Dog Barking" by inserting the underlined language as follows:

CHAPTER 97

EXCESSIVE DOG BARKING

§97-1. Title.

This chapter shall be known as the "Excessive Dog Barking Ordinance."

§97-2. Definitions.

For purposes of this chapter, the terms below are hereby defined as follows:

<u>DOG – All canines which shall include male and female dogs regardless of whether dog has been spayed or neutered.</u>

OWNER – Any person who owns, keeps, harbors or has in his/her care, custody, or control of a dog. Dogs owned by a minor shall be deemed to be in the custody of the minor's parents, legal guardians or head of household where the minor resides.

EXCESSIVE DOG BARKING - Any dog that barks for a continuous period of thirty (30) minutes or more is considered to be engaging in excessive dog barking.

§97-3. Ordinance Requirements.

This ordinance requires all dog owners to control their dog's barking and will be in violation of this Chapter if their dog engages in excessive dog barking.

§97-4. Exemption.

Any dog that is deliberately provoked by a trespasser (be that a human or animal), or is intentionally teased is exempt from this code per incident.

§97-5. Enforcement and Jurisdiction.

- A. This ordinance shall be enforced by the Sussex County Constable, or his designee.
- B. Complaints of excessive dog barking shall be accepted by the Constable's office during its regular business hours of Monday – Friday from 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.
- C. The Constable, or his designee, shall conduct an investigation of excessive dog barking complaints in a timely manner.
- D. The Justice of the Peace Courts in Sussex County shall have jurisdiction over all violations of this ordinance. Any person charged with a violation of this ordinance shall have such case adjudicated by a Justice of the Peace Court in Sussex County.
- §97-6. Penalties.
- A. A person found guilty of violating any provision of Chapter 97 of the Sussex County Code by the Justice of the Peace Court shall be fined in accordance with the following schedule:
 - 1. For the first offense \$25.00 to \$75.00
 - 2. For the second offense \$50.00 to \$100.00

3. For the third offense and any subsequent offenses - \$75.00 to \$150.00

B. If multiple violations occur within any thirty (30) day period, the court may double the fine due up to a maximum of \$300.00.

Section 2. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Synopsis

This Ordinance creates a new Chapter 97 in the Sussex County Code which defines excessive dog barking and creates enforcement provisions and penalties for failure to comply with this Chapter.

All text is new and is underlined. There is no deleted text.

LAWRENCE LANK DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & ZONING

> (302) 855-7878 T (302) 854-5079 F Ilank@sussexcountyde.gov





DELAWARE sussexcountyde.gov

MEMORANDUM

TO: Todd Lawson Todd County Administrator

FROM: Lawrence B. Lank Jaurent Director of Planning and Zoning

- RE: Conditional Use No. 1531 Dean Sherman Borrow Pit for the creation of two ponds Tax Map I.D. 2-35-26.00 Parcel 25.00
- DATE: July 22, 2013

Attached please find a request for a time extension to allow additional time to complete the borrow pit activities on the easterly side of Route 5 between Milton and Harbeson.

The site was originally approved by County Council on April 28, 2004 with Conditions.

On July 21, 2013 the County Council granted a three (3) year time extension for the completion of the project. The time extension terminated on April 20, 2012, the anniversary date of the original approval.

The owner/applicant has been advised that any time extension shall be subject to the review and approval of the County Council.

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at this Department.

Cc: Robin Griffith, Clerk of Council



July 17, 2013

Lawrence Lank Director of Planning and Zoning Sussex County, Delaware

RE: Conditional Use #1531 Borrow Pit for the Creation of two (2) Ponds East of Route 5 ½ mile south of road 257 Tax Map I.D. 2-35-26.00 Parœl 25.00

OMMOR & SNINNYIG 70F J J 5013 RECEIVED

Dear Mr. Lank,

I respectfully request consideration for three (3) additional years to complete the above mentioned projected. This project was not covered under 2016 time extension for subdivisions, RPCs and conditional uses by the County Council because it was approved before 2009. Though the scope of the project has not altered, our ability to export the material off site has been extremely impacted by the down turn in the construction industry. We are pleased at reports of recent increases in activities in construction.

In an effort to gain support for the time extension, I would like to report on the status of the project to date.

The smaller pond is completely excavated and restorations on this pond are completed. This pond also supports a lawn irrigation system.

All though the larger pond is under construction, we have been able to stabilize, mow and irrigate it as well. The pond is approximately 80 % excavated.

Both the staff at Melvin L. Joseph Construction Company and me are actively pursuing potential avenues to complete this project. With the upturn in the housing market we are hopeful this will work in our favor.

The local specifics and dynamics have not changed since the original approval. The project is still isolated from any surrounding property owners and there are no new neighbors in the vicinity that would be affected by the granting of the extension.

I have enclosed visuals to better help explain my progress and scope of the request. Please let me know if you need any further information to support this approval.

Sincerely Dean Sherman

26632 Equistar Drive Milton, De 19968

(H) 302 684 8072 © 302 228 3852

West Rehoboth Community Land Trust, Inc. Post Office Box 633 Rehoboth Beach, Delaware 19971

Councilman George Cole Sussex County Council 2 The Circle PO Box 589 Georgetown, DE 19947

Dear Mr. Cole,

The West Rehoboth Community Land Trust Inc., a (501 C 3), is embarking on phase II of our housing initiative since completion of phase I in February 2013. With a grant of \$5,000 from the Sussex County Council and contributions from foundations, businesses, individuals, and churches in our community, we plan to purchase another lot and partner with Sussex Habitat for Humanity to build another house for home ownership.

Phase I began in September 2012 and was completed in February 2013 when we received our certificate of occupancy for two rental units. We now have two West Rehoboth families who had been living in substandard housing conditions in new energy efficient units with a rent of \$400 and \$500 per month. Milford Housing Development Corporation was our builder, and NCALL our funder, helping us to reach our goal, within budget, as part of a housing preservation and community improvement initiative. We were able to reach this goal with assistance from Sussex County Council and from others committed to seeing housing conditions improve within this low to moderate income community of West Rehoboth.

We now have a contract on another property on Norwood Street.in West Rehoboth at a cost of \$70,000. Sussex Habitat and West Rehoboth Community Land Trust are working out a partnership whereby the land trust will retain the property in the WRCLT and Habitat will work with a family in the community on a homeownership opportunity. As you know a community land trust is essential to keeping housing in West Rehoboth affordable for generations to come. We would like the county to be a partner with us as we move forward to continue revitalization efforts in the West Rehoboth neighborhood. Therefore, we are requesting a grant of \$5,000. With your help we hope to have another house for homeownership by the end of the year or early 2014. The Land Trust is an all volunteer board so that all monies raised for our projects go towards the mission of the organization.

,Thank you for your interest and past support. If you have any questions you can reach me at 302-260-9519.

Sincerely,

Bett Alony

Beth Doty, President West Rehoboth Community Land Trust



COVERDALE CROSSROADS

P O Box 646 11575 Fisher Circle Bridgecille, ,DE 19933

Phone: 302-337-7179

President: Evelyn Wilson

Vice President/Treasurer: Woodrow Evans

Secretary: Mary Lingard

Chaplain/Sergeant at Arms: James Wilson 06/18/2013

Sussex County Council Samuel Wilson P O Box 589 Georgetown, DE 19947

Dear Councilman Wilson:

The Coverdale Crossroads Community Council (EIN # 51-0245091) operates a community-based Summer Enrichment/Cultural Program. There are 20 youth enrolled in our program; ages range from 6-15. The Coverdale Crossroads summer program will be offered seven weeks.

Type of Project: Summer Enrichment/Cultural Program

Project Description: Coverdale Crossroads Community Council, Inc. is writing this request for your financial assistance for our Summer Enrichment/Cultural Program. The Coverdale Crossroads Community Council, Inc is hosting their nineth year Summer Enrichment/Cultural Program. As a result, we need your support to pay for a contractual adult aide to assist with our program; the aide will help monitor the youth as well as assist with projects and activities for program. The program will begin June 24, 2013 and will end August 2, 2013, 9:30-12:30 P M, 4 days a week. The person in mind has already volunteered numerous hours and has worked 3 years for our youth summer enrichment and afterschool program.

Our program has had 20 youth registered for our Summer Enrichment/Cultural for the past year; we are expecting to service approximately the same number this year. However, our community organization's goal is to improve the conditions in which low-income people live. Providing a Summer Enrichment/Cultural Program in our community will help the youth to keep their focus on their academics for the upcoming school year; also, the program will serve as a catalyst to create productive citizens which will improve lives and the condition of the community in the future. Our program also provides fun activities, health preventive educational workshops and field trips for our youth with a positive effort to keep them off the streets.

So, we want to thank you in advance for your support in our efforts in improving the lives of others.

Amount Requested: \$672.00

Project Date: June 24, 2013

We thank you in advance for considering our request.

Appreciatively yours,

Evelyn Wilson, President



Milton Historical Society Engaging Experiences. Interpreting Stories. Appreciating Heritage.

July 5, 2013

Dear Friend,

Greetings from the Milton Historical Society! Our organization is dedicated to increasing public understanding of the history of Milton and the Broadkill Hundred through collecting, preserving, and interpreting local stories, artifacts and documents. We welcome the participation of people of all ages in sharing informative and engaging experiences that will encourage them to discover and appreciate their heritage.

Oùr 8th Annual *Best of Milton Auction* will be held on Saturday, September 21, 2013. The funds raised at this event support the museum's exhibition programs, workshops, tours, lectures, films and a wide variety of popular educational programs for local children. This fundraiser continues to grow each year with over 400 people in the community supporting it.

The MHS would be honored if you would support our event by donating an object, purchasing an advertisement in our program and/or participating as a sponsor. Your contribution will assist our efforts to collect, preserve, and interpret the history of Milton and the Broadkill Hundred and, in addition, enhance your business's exposure in our growing community.

Enclosed are donation and sponsorship opportunity forms. If you are willing to donate an item or purchase an advertisement in the program, please complete and return the enclosed forms. *Please note that sponsorship or a donation comes with the benefit of free admission to the event!*

If you have questions, feel free to call the museum at 302-684-1010 or send an email at info@historicmilton.org. All donations will be acknowledged with a receipt. The MHS is a 501(c)(3) non-profit charitable organization and our tax ID number is 23-7158119.

We thank you for your consideration of this request and hope you will join us in our efforts to preserve the history of Sussex County, Milton and the Broadkill region.

Sincerely,

Uluson Schell

Allison Schell and the MHS Auction Committee

The Milton Historical Society is a 501 c3 non-profit organization. All donations are tax-deductible in accordance with IRS regulations.

District 4

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP OF SUSSEX COUNTY FROM A GR GENERAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO A B-1 NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT FOR A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN LEWES AND REHOBOTH HUNDRED, SUSSEX COUNTY, CONTAINING 0.29 ACRE, MORE OR LESS (Tax Map I.D. 3-34-13.19-2.00)

WHEREAS, on the 15th day of July 2013, a zoning application, denominated Change of Zone No. 1733 was filed on behalf of Rehoboth Appraisal Group, LLC d\b\a First State Appraisal, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of _____ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the Planning and Zoning Commission of Sussex County and said Planning and Zoning Commission recommended that Change of Zone No. 1733 be _____; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of ______ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the County Council of Sussex County and the County Council of Sussex County has determined, based on the findings of facts, that said change of zone is in accordance with the Comprehensive Development Plan and promotes the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of Sussex County,

NOW, THEREFORE,

THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. That Chapter 115, Article II, Subsection 115-7, Code of Sussex County, be amended by deleting from the Comprehensive Zoning Map of Sussex County the zoning classification of [GR General Residential District] and adding in lieu thereof the designation B-1 Neighborhood Business District as it applies to the property hereinafter described.

Section 2. The subject property is described as follows:

ALL that certain tract, piece or parcel of land lying and being situate in Lewes and Rehoboth Hundred, Sussex County, Delaware, and lying at the northwest intersection of Hebron Street (Road 273) and Burton Avenue in West Rehoboth and being lots 2 and 3, said parcel containing 0.29 acre, more or less.

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP OF SUSSEX COUNTY FROM AN AR-1 AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO A CR-1 COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN INDIAN RIVER HUNDRED, SUSSEX COUNTY, CONTAINING 9.33 ACRES, MORE OR LESS (Tax Map I.D. 2-34-29.00-263.00)

WHEREAS, on the 25th day of July 2013, a zoning application, denominated Change of Zone No. 1734 was filed on behalf of American Legion Post #28; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of _____ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the Planning and Zoning Commission of Sussex County and said Planning and Zoning Commission recommended that Change of Zone No. 1734 be _____; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of ______ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the County Council of Sussex County and the County Council of Sussex County has determined, based on the findings of facts, that said change of zone is in accordance with the Comprehensive Development Plan and promotes the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of Sussex County,

NOW, THEREFORE,

THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. That Chapter 115, Article II, Subsection 115-7, Code of Sussex County, be amended by deleting from the Comprehensive Zoning Map of Sussex County the zoning classification of [AR-1 Agricultural Residential District] and adding in lieu thereof the designation CR-1 Commercial Residential District as it applies to the property hereinafter described.

Section 2. The subject property is described as follows:

ALL that certain tract, piece or parcel of land lying and being situate in Indian River Hundred, Sussex County, Delaware, and lying at the southwest corner of the intersection of Route 24 (John J. Williams Highway) and Road 298 (Legion Road) and being more particularly described in Deed Book 3957, Page 128, in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for Sussex County, said parcel containing 9.33 acres more or less.

District 4

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE COMPREHENSIVE ZONING MAP OF SUSSEX COUNTY FROM AN AR-1 AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND A C-1 GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO A CR-1 COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN BALTIMORE HUNDRED, SUSSEX COUNTY, CONTAINING 2.47 ACRES, MORE OR LESS (Tax Map I.D. 1-34-11.00-178.00)

WHEREAS, on the 24th day of June 2013, a zoning application, denominated Change of Zone No. 1735 was filed on behalf of Holt's Dispensary, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of _____ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the Planning and Zoning Commission of Sussex County and said Planning and Zoning Commission recommended that Change of Zone No. 1735 be _____; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of ______ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the County Council of Sussex County and the County Council of Sussex County has determined, based on the findings of facts, that said change of zone is in accordance with the Comprehensive Development Plan and promotes the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of Sussex County,

NOW, THEREFORE,

THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. That Chapter 115, Article II, Subsection 115-7, Code of Sussex County, be amended by deleting from the Comprehensive Zoning Map of Sussex County the zoning classification of [AR-1 Agricultural Residential District and C-1 General Commercial District] and adding in lieu thereof the designation CR-1 Commercial Residential District as it applies to the property hereinafter described.

Section 2. The subject property is described as follows:

ALL that certain tract, piece or parcel of land lying and being situate in Baltimore Hundred, Sussex County, Delaware, and lying north of Route 26 (Atlantic Avenue) 200 feet west of Route 17 (Roxana Road) and being more particularly described in Deed Book 594, Page 345, in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for Sussex County, said parcel containing 2.47 acres more or less.

District 5

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO GRANT A CONDITIONAL USE OF LAND IN AN AR-1 AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR A MICRO-DISTILLERY TO BE LOCATED ON A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN LITTLE CREEK HUNDRED, SUSSEX COUNTY, CONTAINING 4.06 ACRES, MORE OR LESS (Tax Map I.D. 5-32-1.00-6.00)

WHEREAS, on the 20th day of June 2013, a conditional use application, denominated Conditional Use No. 1968 was filed on behalf of Ray Baker; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of ______ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the Planning and Zoning Commission of Sussex County and said Planning and Zoning Commission recommended that Conditional Use No. 1968 be _____; and

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of ______ 2013, a public hearing was held, after notice, before the County Council of Sussex County and the County Council of Sussex County determined, based on the findings of facts, that said conditional use is in accordance with the Comprehensive Development Plan and promotes the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of Sussex County, and that the conditional use is for the general convenience and welfare of the inhabitants of Sussex County.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNTY OF SUSSEX HEREBY ORDAINS:

Section 1. That Chapter 115, Article IV, Subsection 115-22, Code of Sussex County, be amended by adding the designation of Conditional Use No. 1968 as it applies to the property hereinafter described.

Section 2. The subject property is described as follows:

ALL that certain tract, piece or parcel of land, lying and being situate in Little Creek Hundred, Sussex County, Delaware, and lying at the intersection northwest of Road 506 (Shockley Road) and northeast of Road 505 (Rider Road) and 730 feet south of Route 24 (Sharptown Road) and being more particularly described as the residual lands of the minor subdivision of lands of Claudia T. Bennett as recorded in Plot Book 113 Page 313 in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for Sussex County, said parcel containing 4.06 acres, more or less.